From: Jasonboyle03 me

To: Court Of Appeals Filings

Cc: Mark Farthing; Jim Logan; Kim Manley; awilson@scag.gov; Grace Sommer; Susan Spencer; Caroline Collins;
MclIntosh, Lawton Law Clerk (Carson Neeves); MclIntosh, Lawton Secretary (Tammy Jennings

Subject: Re: Take 2

Date: Wednesday, December 10, 2025 11:41:56 AM

Attachments: ROA Final v3-151-250.pdf

*** EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside the organization. Please
exercise caution before clicking any links or opening attachments. ***

On Wed, Dec 10, 2025 at 11:39 AM Jasonboyle03 me <jasonboyle03(@gmail.com> wrote:
I am now sending the updated ROA broken into deliverable segments. THese are identical
to the ones emailed in the previous thread

On Wed, Dec 10, 2025 at 11:38 AM Jasonboyle03 me <jasonboyle03@gmail.com> wrote:
Please ignore the previous correspondence and accept these filings in this new thread.

I apologize for the confusion. As a Pro Se litigant that was denied counsel in a criminal
trial disguised as a civil contempt hearing, I am managing a family and full time work
while striving for justice. I pray that errors I cause and frustration I express are seen as
understandable and forgivable.

Thank you,
Jason
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number.

THE COURT: It's the what?

THE CLERK: Common police case number. I think he's
referring to the probate court case number.

THE COURT: Okay. What is the common police case
number on this case? It's 00451.

MR. BOYLE: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Then that's your case number.

MR. BOYLE: All right. And then I would just say
it's premature on 62-1-308, there's a schedule set forth. I
have followed that schedule immaculately, I filed my appeal
brief on October -- or sorry, on August 20th, which means my
initial appeal brief which means my final appeal brief will be
due by September, I think 19 because there was 31 days in
August. And then the --

THE COURT: Well, let me ask you. I've got that in
front of me here. Did you file your notice of intent to appeal
within 10 days and serve it on the probate court and the
circuit court?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Did -- and within 45 days, did you write
the statement of the issues on appeal?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And how about the transcript? Have you

obtained the transcript?
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MR. BOYLE: Yes sir. Well, the transcript is under
debate because the case number. I've put a motion to strike on
the transcripts, it uses the incorrect case number but other
than that I haven't --

THE COURT: Motion to strike I don't even know what
you're talking about.

MR. BOYLE: So, in the probate court during -- on the
June 17th hearing I was called in front on a summons, which
included the case number of the Doyle Pierce estate case.

THE COURT: Okay. And that's the one that you were
found in contempt for violating the order from the Supreme
Court?

MR. BOYLE: Correct, sir.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BOYLE: And so -- and then if you look at page 14
of that transcript, I was confused because I couldn't
understand why I was under the Doyle Pierce estate case number
and I was —-- couldn't get a public defender for this criminal
case because the public defender said it was a civil case
because it was the Doyle Pierce estate case. And so, then
here's a quote from Judge Singleton on June 17th at my criminal
trial. Judge Singleton says, "No, this is not under the Doyle
Pierce case. This is not under -- this is -- you may have
attached a case number to it, but this is your conduct. It has

nothing to do with the estate of Doyle Pierce. This has to do
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with you recording on the date and time in gquestion, recording
at the clerk's window." I reply, "The summons you sent had
Doyle Pierce's estate number," and Singleton replies, Judge
Singleton replies, "It is associated somewhat with the case
because you were here on the matter to allegedly pay an invoice
for -- on the behalf of someone else." All right. But in
reality, technically does not have anything to do with Pierce
estate. All right. This time the Court is going to call
Jessica Lowman," and he moves on.

So, it doesn't -- the case doesn't have anything to
do with the Doyle Pierce estate case by Judge Singleton's
admission. But on the front of the transcript is the Doyle
Pierce estate case number. So, I would like to have a
transcript that removes this number. And I -- that's my motion
to strike because I actually submitted a transcript that did
not have this case number on the front of it.

And then they pleaded with you to have Legal Eagle produce
the transcript. And then Legal Eagle came back with a
transcript, which has this incorrect case number on. So, I
filed a motion to strike today, because I'd like to strike this
transcript from the record and get a transcript that's more
consistent with what actually occurred in the hearing.

THE COURT: Are you saying that other than having the
probate case number, that the transcript is somehow not

indicative of what happened?
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MR. BOYLE: No, I think that -- I think the
transcript does lay it out. I think that having that case
number on --

THE COURT: Why don't we just amend it to provide
that the case number is one you have in this case going on now?

MR. BOYLE: Whatever you feel is appropriate is fine
by me, sir. I just feel like that is --

THE COURT: Let me tell you, I got a lot of feelings
about what is and what's not appropriate, but that's not
relevant. It just seems to me that that would be the way to do
it since it's got a new case number when it came up. You
didn't actually stay —-- you didn't actually have a case that
you brought and you were found in contempt in a case that was
proceeding for the Court. I -- quite frankly, I'm not sure how
to handle that if you want to.

MR. BOYLE: Well, right. I mean, I was held in
detention for 40 days with no case number or no publicly listed
crime. I think that, you know, there's reason to investigate.
That's my understanding is that that's not appropriate to hold
someone for 40 days with no case number or no crime listed.

THE COURT: You know what, I can't answer that or not
quite frankly but --

MR. LOGAN: Your Honor, can I hopefully provide some
clarity here. This is the motion that I was referring to and I

had sent a memorandum to the Court with the --- with some
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attachments

MR. BOYLE: And have I received these?

MR. LOGAN: Yes sir, I have served you with
everything I have filed. It has both case numbers on it. My
memorandum does because his cover sheet when he filed his first
notice of appeal contained both numbers. So, I have carried
that forward in my motion to dismiss his appeal. He has a copy
-- has had it for weeks.

I had Legal Eagle transcribe the hearing. His copy or
whoever produced his transcript starts about halfway, Legal
Eagle starts from the beginning. There is a certification
attached to the Legal Eagle just like there always is, that it
is as accurate transcript of the hearing. He has that as well
as what the condensed version which he has and I have. There
basically -- the only difference is Legal Eagle starts from the
beginning of the hearing.

THE COURT: Let me stop you right there. Any -- do
you have any argument that the transcript that has been
provided by Legal Eagle is somehow not accurate or doesn't
accurate reflect what happened in the hearing?

MR. BOYLE: Yes sir. Only in a couple places.
There's a whole dialogue between Judge Singleton and Jessica
Lowman in the transcript, but I don't believe that's actually
Jessica Lowman in the transcript. I believe that that's a

different clerk. And I think that —--
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THE COURT: That well may be but that's what we've
always done is had somebody certify this is a legitimate
transcript. That's what they did in this case, Legal Eagles.
They don't have anybody to reward or punish in this case, they
just were doing what the transcript says. I'm glad to put a
new number on it for you but other than that I'm going to leave
the transcript just as it was done by Legal Eagle. Okay. Sir?

MR. LOGAN: Does the Court have a copy of my
memorandum that I filed on this case, which is my motion --
actually my motion to dismiss his appeal.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LOGAN: So, I'll be glad to have -- I thought we
served it on him. I'll give him another copy, but I'll be glad
to hand this up but it does have a stamp that it was filed.

THE COURT: Okay. I don't doubt it, I never did.

MR. LOGAN: Okay. But I -- if it is a little
technical but I can explain, but I do ask the Court to study a
little bit because it is significant --

THE COURT: Asking me to study a bit, are you trying
to say that I don't study --

MR. LOGAN: I'm sorry, Your Honor. I know you study
everything. So, I just ask that -- I'll withdraw my statement,
I should not have said it and I'm sorry.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, go ahead.

MR. LOGAN: Thank you. All right. This is what he -
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MR. BOYLE: 1Is this the motion to dismiss we're
hearing now?

MR. LOGAN: Motion to dismiss, Your Honor.

MR. BOYLE: That was not on the docket, sir. I'm not
prepared for that at all.

MR. LOGAN: It says motion/appeal on the docket.

THE COURT: And his motion is —-- the response is the
motion to dismiss your appeal and that is a response.

MR. BOYLE: The response -- again, I'm pro se I don't
really —- I try my best. I work a full-time job and I have a
kid and I have a life. I try my best.

THE COURT: Please --

MR. LOGAN: Your Honor, he can't come into court and
keep saying because --

THE COURT: Stop, I know that. Let's do this. Do
your appeal, do your motion to dismiss, argue your motion for
your appeal. Stand up while you're doing it, please.

MR. BOYLE: All right. Yes, sir. Again, I would
like to state that this seems very premature because the Rule
62-1-308 sets forth the schedule, which we have not adhered to.
In this case, a lot of things happened that -- for example, I
had an attorney approved by the Public Defender's Office. I
gave Judge Singleton prior to the hearing my approved public

defender. And he said it wasn't approved for some reason and
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then he called the public defender down to the courtroom. At
the time of the court hearing, the public defender said that I
was not permitted to have a public defender because of the case
number, basically that said that it was a civil case because I
was being held in contempt of the Doyle Pierce estate case,
when in fact I was being held in contempt of a Supreme Court
administrative order.

And if I had been held in contempt of the Supreme
Court Administrative order under a new case number, then I
would've been permitted a public defender. But either way, at
the day of the hearing, I was given no notice. I requested a
continuance for a public defender and that was denied. I
submitted a full motion to dismiss, which pointed out the
glaring contradiction of Judge Singleton asking -- acting as
the victim, the moving party, the primary witness, the
investigator, the judge, and who knows what else.

The -- and so this motion to dismiss was —-- I don't even
think he had time to read it, but it -- he dismissed it at the
start of the hearing. But that dismissal was never put on the
public record. There's no public record of my motion to
dismiss being dismissed. So, I think that that is a
significant thing that we need to look into.

And then that during the hearing, Judge Singleton
acted as the prosecutor calling witnesses and the witnesses he

called were largely his subordinates. He called his clerks and
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he called -- I think he just called his two clerks. And he
even collected affidavits from his clerks. He's being the
investigator and he's going -- you know, he's a witness and
he's gathering information.

He wasn't even present for what he's calling the direct
criminal contempt. He got it through hearsay from other people
and so it doesn't really feel like direct criminal contempt to
me. And again, there was a litany of other things. For some
reason I had believed that once we recognized that we had not
adhered to the schedule of 62-1-308, that we would all agree to
talk about this on a later date.

THE COURT: Well, let me point out something for you
right quick.

MR. BOYLE: Yes.

THE COURT: That's a probate court schedule, you just
asked the probate court not be part of this case. It's not a
part of this case. As you rightly pointed out, this is not a
probate case. So, it's not relevant to your appeal at all.

MR. BOYLE: Interesting.

THE COURT: Okay. It's not.

MR. BOYLE: Well, I don't -- again, I'm not a lawyer,
sir.

THE COURT: I know. And that doesn't work for you
anymore because you are a pro se litigant. I -- you know, I've

urged you to go talk to counsel. I really think you should but
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go ahead if you would.

MR. BOYLE: Let's see. The -- you know, and I think
that there was a reason to think that Judge Singleton had held
a lot of animosity against me for a long time. On October
24th, 2023, I was in the probate lobby with my son. And as I
was waiting for papers to be delivered to me assistant Judge
Green was in the lobby.

And Judge Green was talking with an older man. And it
sounded to me like she was giving the option of he could either
sign these documents or get an attorney. I jumped in and kind
of interrupted maybe a little bit, but I said that you could
also act pro se of informing the man of his rights. This is
all actually really clearly detailed in the transcript of the
June 17th hearing. And so, Judge Green then apparently told
Singleton something. She apparent -- she says in the
transcript, she didn't tell him I broke the law, but Judge
Singleton somehow interpreted this into me breaking the law as
the giving legal advice illegally, when in fact all I did was
inform the man of his rights.

Judge Singleton then sent an email to all the parties
of the Doyle Pierce's estate case that didn't include me and
said that I was breaking the law in the court lobby and was
never again allowed in the Court lobby. So, he made an order
over an email against me that I was never served. Of course, I

did return to the lobby many times because I have to file
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paperwork on behalf of my wife. She can't always make it. And
so, I feel like he's been holding a grudge from then ever
since. When I went into the probate court lobby itself on the
day, luckily, I filmed myself entering the room. The Supreme
Court order that I am accused of violating, it says very
clearly that it shall be posted on the Court door and as, you
know, sir, shall as a mandatory directive.

And so, Judge Singleton's office violated that order
by not posting it correctly on the door. During my time of
filming the entire time, I was obviously unaware of the order.
I'd never been notified of the order in any way. And I was
filming to protect myself because there had been
inconsistencies at the window and accusations made at the
window related to the clerks and Judge Singleton.

I felt the need to protect myself with a recording. And
it really helped because in this hearing, one of them says I
was intimidating and one of the clerks said I was very loud.
But luckily, we have it all recorded and we can watch it and
see that I was not either of those things. And so, the order
was never posted, I filmed the entire duration. I was never
informed of the order; I was never asked to stop filming.

No one asked me to stop filming from the time I
started filming till the time I left. ©No one informed me it
was against the order. So, I did not willingly violate any

order on that day. So, there is a ton of reasons why I feel
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that this appeal is very valid. That's probably the most
blatant one is that and then there's these two incidences of
May 29th and May 24th. There was never a hearing on May 29th.
I was sentenced to direct criminal contempt in the lobby for
filming in the lobby, I was never accused of violating the
order on May 29th. So, I assume the sentence is for the
potential violation of May 24th.

In this transcript, there's a really troubling part,
sir. So, I was sentenced on May 29th to 10 days in jail. That
order includes the events of May 24th and May, 2019. Both
incidents that I was filming in the court lobby. The first
incident I was filming at the clerk's window, unaware of the
order. And then in the second sentencing of June 5th, which
turned out to be a mistrial because my lawyer ended up being a
fake lawyer, I was sentenced to 60 days. Again, that trial
only heard the events of May 24th.

THE COURT: Say that again?

MR. BOYLE: The events of the second trial on June
5th only included the events of May 24th. The day where I was
obviously unaware of any order, I had no idea that any order
existed that I supposedly violated. And then that was a
mistrial, in which case I was released and I was brought back
on June 17th. On the June 17th hearing, I asked three times in
this transcript, are we only hearing May 24th? He said yes, all

three times. Both the clerks testified to having no knowledge
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of me being aware of the Supreme Court Administrative Order.
Judge Green testified to me having no way of knowing that I'm
aware to the Supreme Court. Judge Singleton being the primary
witness, refused to be cross-examined. So, I don't know what
his position is, but I did actually ask to cross-examine Judge
Singleton as the primary witness and he denied my petition to
cross-examine him. So, I don't think there's any evidence --

THE COURT: Let me ask you this?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: When you appeal or finding of contempt is
what you're doing?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: What is the scope of review for me to
look at that to give you any relief?

MR. BOYLE: I guess, I don't really understand the
legal language but I think that the --

THE COURT: 1In other words, what do I have to find in
order to say, okay, yeah, you are entitled to some relief here.

MR. BOYLE: I would think that you'd have to find
that I was never notified of the order itself that I didn't
willingly violate it. Because the transcript clearly shows
there's no evidence that I willingly violated that order at any
level, at any time. And then I want to go back to that
sentencing thing, if you don't mind for a second. So, I was

sentenced to 10 days and then later in 60 days. And if you get
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to the end of this, it's very troubling. When he gives the
sentence of 50 days on the last one, he's really talking like
he gave me 10 days and then he gave me 60 days as if he feels
that was one sentence. Like he took the 10-day sentence and
extended the 10-day sentence up to 60 days. But that's
actually not what I believe the record shows. I believe the
record shows that I was sentenced to 10 days and then I was
sentenced completely separately to 60 days for the exact same
crime, which would've been a double jeopardy because I think
we're only just -- there's no trial ever held or no accusation
ever held that I violated the order on May 29th.

So, we're talking only about May 24th now was
sentenced twice. And in this case, he sentenced me to 50 days
saying I already served 10 days of the 60-day sentence. That
he -- I mean this convolution of what is one crime and what is
double jeopardy, I think is also a major, major problem. And
even 1f we want to say that the May 29th order for some reason
stands because who knows how that could be justified, but the

May -- the June 17th order, there's no way it stands, it's

double jeopardy. He already sentenced me for that crime on May

29th.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. BOYLE: 1I'm sure there is more at the top of my
head right now.

THE COURT: 1I'll give you a chance to respond.
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MR. LOGAN: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. LOGAN: I'm a little confused now. Did he file a

notice of appeal? I haven't been served with it.

THE COURT: Did you not serve him a notice of appeal?

MR. BOYLE: I put things in the mail several times.

THE COURT: That doesn't answer my question. Guys,
let me ask you this. Either we're going to have a hearing
today or I'm going to continue it and let y'all come back at
another day.

MR. LOGAN: Well, I can't respond completely to what
he has argued.

THE COURT: We're going to continue everything.
Okay. Give him a copy of your notice of appeal. You give him
a copy or y'all do whatever you do to get the transcript done.

MR. LOGAN: Sure, he got a copy of my notice.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LOGAN: If T file them up.

THE COURT: All right. And so, before you leave get
with Amanda. It doesn't have to be me to hear the case. It
can be any sort of court judge. However, I'm more than happy
to hear the case, it doesn't matter. Then we'll reschedule it

once everybody gets their paperwork ready to go, ready. It's

fair for you, fair for you. This is not a probate court appeal.

I would -- those things that you're talking about don't have

164





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

31
any -—-

MR. BOYLE: Well, just have the probate -- the
summons was given with the probate case number. So, I kind of
fell under the rule.

THE COURT: I don't -- you know, I don't blame you
for thinking that. I mean, quite frankly, I'm just you know --

MR. LOGAN: Your Honor, are you saying that Section
621-308 dealing with appeals from the probate court is not
applicable?

THE COURT: I don't think it is. That's where
probate -- he's finding him in contempt for doing -- for what
I've gathered -- for using his direct contempt -- inherent
direct contempt powers or inherent powers for direct contempt
in the -- around or near the Court's presence. That doesn't
have anything to do with the probate court. It might have been
put under that number but it has to do with conduct outside of
the Court case.

MR. LOGAN: Can I make a comment?

THE COURT: You certainly may.

MR. LOGAN: It says in Section A, the notice of
intention to appeal to the circuit court must be filed in the
office of the circuit court, et cetera.

THE COURT: I know that.

MR. LOGAN: And one of my arguments is that he did

not make the filings on time under this court. And it deals
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with what comes from the circuit court. I mean from the
probate court to the circuit court and the timeliness of that.
So —-

THE COURT: Well, here's the thing. You know, you
have two types of -- you have direct contempt, you have
constructive contempt, you have criminal contempt, and you have
civil. I mean civil contempt and they're all different things
and standards are different. You know, I have to find the
civil contempt by clear and convincing evidence, criminal by
proof beyond a reasonable doubt.

And the punishment kind of dictates which it is and civil
contempt, as you know better than I do is you get the keys to
the jailhouse and if you do something to comply then you get
out. Of criminal contempt you can't get out. You have to do
what they do. So, it seems to me this case is a case of
criminal contempt because it was an order that you're going to
do 60 days and there's no way to him not to do that.

So, I think that is criminal contempt. But it is for
conduct outside the scope of this case, it's for conduct that
occurred in the lobby of this case is my understanding. And an
alleged violation of an order from the Court administration
saying you can't film or whatever the order said. That's my
understanding. So, therefore why it might have taken place at
the probate court location, it's not a probate court matter.

That's my interpretation of it.
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MR. LOGAN: Well, I'll reserve my right.

THE COURT: Yeah. And if you can prove me wrong, I -
- you know, I get proven wrong about every other day and I
don't -—— I'm not so thick that it bothers me, I'm glad to be
corrected. I Jjust think that if he were sitting out here doing
something out that I thought he was guilty or you of direct
criminal intent and I said, "Hey, you're -- you've got --
you're under contempt of court.

You under the inherent authority that I have to control of
the court proceedings, you have directly violated that and so
I'm sentencing you 30 days. That is a criminal contempt and --
but it has nothing to do with the fact that I'm trying a civil
case or a criminal case at the time.

MR. LOGAN: Well, I'm sure I may have some additional
arguments but it just seems that if you are appealing something
that happened from the probate court that the time to do that,
not anything else but the time to do that would be governed by
these rules. Now that I -- that I've attached to my --

THE COURT: Well, let me ask you this. What is the
time to appeal a criminal order?

MR. LOGAN: I -- I've got to go back and look at
this.

THE COURT: 1It's 10 days.

MR. LOGAN: Okay.

THE COURT: Same timeframe.
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MR. LOGAN: Okay. And also, to what about filing the
-- because this rule talks about filing a -- must be filed a
written notice. Excuse me, within 45 days after receipt of the
notice of the order so and so forth, the appellate must file
with the clerk of the circuit court a statement of issues on
appeal. And it's my -- the crux of my motion is that he did
not file that notice within that 45-day time period.

THE COURT: My law clerk just said that the notice of
appeal was filed on 6-14-24 with the Court and the amended
appeal served on Singleton 6-26-24. That's what she just told
me based on the record.

MR. LOGAN: Well, I just -- I would like for her to
read my memo and since y'all didn't have it you apparently
haven't done that as how I distinguish that. He's got two
notices of appeal here. The first one he filed within 10 days;
the problem is he didn't file within 45 days that started
running from the filing date of that notice -- first notice of
appeal. And if that goes away because that's dismissed then
there is no double jeopardy and that throws out his second
appeal. That's where I'm coming from.

THE COURT: I got you.

MR. LOGAN: Okay.

THE COURT: And we're not arguing it today, I'm going
to let you have a chance. My view and subject to either one of

you proving me wrong. You still -- I can't tell you what to
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do. You have a right to represent yourself, I would urge you
to talk to a lawyer at a minimum.

MR. BOYLE: I'm broke, sir.

THE COURT: Huh?

MR. BOYLE: I'm broke, I'm financially broke.

THE COURT: Well, that's up to you. But either my
judgment is that this is not a probate matter in the classical
sense that I'm working within the state or some other issue
that's contained in the probate court. This is a matter that
occurred in the perimeters of the probate court that violated
administrative order from South Carolina Supreme Court. And it
does not involve only the probate court it just involves the
inherent authority of the Court.

MR. LOGAN: And I'm not -- the 10-day time period is
the same. Well, I've got to go back now based upon what you've
said is, 1s there a time period for filing the transcript just
like there is here and I don't know what that time period is or
I don't know 1if it's the same as what's in here.

THE COURT: I -- you know what? The only thing I can
tell both of you is when I was looking and getting ready for
this hearing, said that probate court specialized appellate
rules. You don't follow the general rules that you have for
the other appellate rules is 241 or whatever it is. Anyway, I
don't know but don't go until you -- we have a hearing

scheduled. Okay? It -- and again, I don't -- you're not going
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to break my heart if you don't want me to hear it. 1It's not
going to break my heart if you want me to hear it, whatever
y'all schedule, is what we'll do I don't care. Okay?

MR. LOGAN: So, that applies to all -- to the other
two or three motions?

THE COURT: Yeah. We all continue everything until
we do that.

MR. BOYLE: Can I respond to what this gentleman
said?

THE COURT: Well, there is no need. I'm not making
an order today and it's not going to help you or hurt you one
way or the other.

MR. BOYLE: Thank you, sir. I really appreciate
that.

THE COURT: All right. But the other order, remember
what I told you. I would urge you to consider that one,
beginning at the hearing on the rule to show cause. Okay?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Guys thank you. If I'm going
to hear your case I'll see you later. If not good luck to you.
All right.

MR. BOYLE: Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: All right.

[END OF HEARING]
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MR. BOYLE: All right. Just give me half a second, sir
-- sorry, your Honor. So this appeal is based on errors in
law during the criminal trial of my contempt hearing. I
think at first, it's important to note that my relationship
with Judge Singleton began long ago, inadvertently, on
October 24, 2023.

And what happened on that day is I had arrived at the
probate court to serve a notice of a -- a appeal on a third
party. I was so ignorant at the time that I didn't
understand that that's the type of thing that can upset a
judge. So I just delivered a paper. I was told to wait in
the lobby. I was waiting in the lobby and had a conversation

with a man about attorneys or no attorneys --

THE COURT: Well, hang on -- hang on. All due respect.
I just want to -- on this -- on your appeal, I want to hear
the basis for the -- I -- I -- the factual background --

MR. BOYLE: I want to establish a case of judicial
vindictiveness.

THE COURT: I don't want to hear it. I want to hear
the basis for the appeal. Okay, sir?

MR. BOYLE: All right. So there are many errors in
law.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BOYLE: One, the South Carolina Supreme Court

administrative order that I'm accused of violating, I was
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never served or made aware of. The order itself states that
the order shall be posted on -- or notice of the order shall
be posted on the courthouse clerk. As in your -- your
clerk's lobby. There's a notice that says, "No electronic
devices past this point."

That notice was not posted. And there is evidence of
that because when I recorded myself, I started the recording
before entering the lobby, and there's no notice posted on
the door. At no time during my recording was I ever asked to
stop recording. And during the -- in the transcripts, it's
very clear that there's no evidence that I was made aware of
that order, or that I was aware of the order. And I'1ll
testify now that I had no knowledge of the order.

THE COURT: Well, this is an appeal. We're not taking
testimony. Okay, sir?

MR. BOYLE: Oh, yes, sir. And so, I was -- I was held
in direct criminal contempt of an order that I was unaware
of, but I was also in the probate lobby, and Judge Singleton
was not present. So all the information he has is from --
from later evidence. And my understanding is to be held in
direct criminal contempt, there has to be open court, or at
least be in the presence of a judge.

THE COURT: The case is about that in the lobby is
sufficiently closed for the Court to do that. So I --

MR. BOYLE: And the --
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THE COURT: That ground --

MR. BOYLE: -- judge was not present.

THE COURT: -- is denied, but go ahead.

MR. BOYLE: All right. And then there's the
double-jeopardy piece. So on May 29th, in the lobby, I was
sentenced to 10 days in jail. And then later in a hearing --
well, on June 5th, I was sentenced to 60 days. And then on
June 17th, I was sentenced to 50 days. The June 5th hearing
got thrown out. So the June 17th hearing, I was sentenced to
additional 50 days.

If you read the sent -- if you read the transcript
where the sentencing occurs, it's a little messy. But
basically, Judge Singleton's argument is that I deserve 60
days in jail for my offense. And he already sentenced me to
10 days. So he's going to sentence me to 50 more days. And
that's a clear double-jeopardy violation because there's only
been one offense. There's only one set of facts.

THE COURT: And the first sentence was how long?

10 days?

MR. BOYLE: Yeah. And the second one was 50 days. But
in his rationale, he says he wants to sentence me to a total
of 60 days. And that's in the transcript. Additionally,
there were many ex parte conversations prior to my trial in
that two of the main witnesses were his law clerks, Jessica

Lowman and Maggie Bonadies (ph). And these --
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THE COURT: I don't think -- did -- probate court
(inaudible) have a law clerk?

MR. BOYLE: Or -- well, I don't know what they're
called. Clerk of courts? There's —-- the people who work the
office.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BOYLE: People who work at the front desk. So the
people that work at the front desk were the witnesses, and
they produced affidavits. And in the first trial of

June 5th, which was thrown out, Judge Singleton admitted to

asking Maggie Bonadies to prepare an affidavit. I mean --
and to an extent that -- that -- that's just an ex parte
conversation. It's also witness coaching, and lots of other
things.

And then he called his subordinates to the stand. So
Judge Singleton was acting as the prosecutor, a witness, he
was the victim, he was the moving party, and he was also an
investigator. And in that, he called his subordinates to the
stand. So he called them, he gquestioned them. He also
testified from the stand several times. And then when I
asked to cross-examine him, he denied to be cross-examined.
So I never even got to face my accuser.

THE COURT: You -- you're talking about the judge. You
wanted to cross-examine the judge?

MR. BOYLE: Yeah. Because he's a witness to the case.
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THE COURT: All right, sir.

MR. BOYLE: Because he was a witness to the case. And
I thought that some of the things that he testified on the
stand as a witness to were not correct. And I didn't know
how to correct that if I can't cross-examine him or -- or
contest those facts. And then I think one of the biggest
ones is that I was granted a public defender before the
trial. About 10 days before the trial, I was granted a
public defender. The public defender gave me a notice to
deliver to the judge.

And the -- the secretary there even said, "This is like
a get out of jail free card for a short amount of time."
Because they couldn't assign me a public defender in that
amount of time. So I wasn't assigned one yet, but I was
granted one. And so, they had told me to turn in that notice
and then ask for a continuance at the trial. So I followed
the instructions, and I did that.

Well, Judge Singleton then called a recess, apparently
called down to the public defender's office, had John Abdalla
come up. And this is where it gets a little tricky. I was
served a summon with the Doyle Pierce Estate case number on
it. I have nothing to do with the Doyle Pierce Estate case.
And in the transcripts, Judge Singleton clearly states that I
have nothing to do with the Doyle Pierce Estate case.

And then -- but he used that number. And so, when the
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public defender looked more closely at it, he decided he
couldn't represent me because the case was civil in nature.
It was a civil case because it had the Doyle Pierce Estate
case number on i1t, when in real, it's a criminal trial. So I

should have been allowed to have a public defender. But

either way, my -- I believed I had an attorney, and about --
well, into my trial, the attorney was -- you know --

THE COURT: What -- what did Mr. Abdalla do at -- after
he looked at the case number? He said, "I -- I can't
represent you," or --7

MR. BOYLE: Because it's a civil case.

THE COURT: And he left?

MR. BOYLE: He left.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BOYLE: And then continuance was denied. And the
-- the trial continued on. And then there's this issue of
case numbers themselves. Once I said that I was not part of
the Doyle Pierce Estate case -- well, even before that,
because I was sentenced on May 29th in the courthouse lobby.
And at that time, that sentencing order had no case number on
it.

And I was held in the detention center for almost
10 days with no case number. And then I went back to court
on June 5th and was sentenced to 60 days with no case number.

And then that trial was thrown out, and I was released from
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jail on that day. And then on June 17th --

THE COURT: Trial thrown out? I'm not following that.
Tell me that.

MR. BOYLE: So on June 5th, I had hired an attorney, or
someone that I believed was an attorney, who represented
themselves to me as an attorney.

THE COURT: Oh, yeah -- yeah.

MR. BOYLE: And it turns out he wasn't an attorney.
But I didn't -- I had no knowledge of that.

THE COURT: I -- I -- that's --you know what?

MR. BOYLE: So that trial was thrown out.

THE COURT: Right. I got you. Okay.

MR. BOYLE: And then also Richard Hunt McDuff sat at
the prosecutor's bench, which I think was another contention
to get the trial. So I don't actually know exactly what all
the issues were. Richard Hunt McDuff sat at the prosecutor's
bench for my criminal trial, which was also not supposed to
happen, I don't believe.

THE COURT: I -- I -- I don't see any problem with
that, but go ahead.

MR. BOYLE: All right. Well, it's Jjust something that
was on my notes. But then -- so I was sentenced on May 29th
with no case number, sentenced on June 5th with no case

number, and sentenced on June 17th with no case number, and
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THE COURT: Give me the dates you were sentenced,
please.

MR. BOYLE: May 29th, June 5th, and June 17th.

THE COURT: I thought you were only sentenced twice.

MR. BOYLE: Uh-huh. Well, the one was thrown out, so I
was sentenced on June 5th, but then later the trial was
thrown out.

THE COURT: So when you were sentenced on the 5th, how
many days did you get?

MR. BOYLE: 60.

THE COURT: 60.

MR. BOYLE: But then he corrected it on the 17th, to
50. He changed it to 50 on the 17th because he said
basically, he had a confusion. He wanted me to serve a total
of 60 days.

THE COURT: Got you.

MR. BOYLE: The first time he sentenced me to 10, and
then he sentenced me to 60, which would have made 70.

THE COURT: Got you.

MR. BOYLE: And this is really the argument for the
double-jeopardy there.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BOYLE: And then -- you know, this whole thing with
the case numbers, and not having a case number, and being

incarcerated for a total of nearly 40 days with no case
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number -- you know, I -- I -- I think that it shows that
there was no jurisdiction because I think he could have just
had a case number. It's a criminal case. Just -- I don't
understand why it had no case number.

THE COURT: I can't explain that case number either.
But jurisdiction, he had jurisdictions. His court, he has
the right to either hold you in contempt or not if it's
direct contempt of his court. But -- so he had jurisdiction.
I'm -- any -- any grounds of lack of jurisdiction, I'm going
to deny, but go ahead.

MR. BOYLE: All right. And then Judge Singleton
testified from the bench as a witness, and -- you know, under
the judicial code of ethics, that doesn't seem right. And --
you know, he also called his subordinates to stand, he
cross—-examined his subordinates.

There were several things that just didn't seem right.
I requested a jury trial prior to the hearing, and that
request for a Jjury trial was denied. I requested a special
prosecutor prior to the hearing, that was also denied.

THE COURT: Now, the jury trial, you don't have a jury
trial right in a contempt case, unless you're going to get
six months or more.

MR. BOYLE: All right.

THE COURT: Okay. And so, if you're 60 days, you don't

-— you don't have a jury trial right. Okay, sir?
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MR. BOYLE: What about a special prosecutor?

THE COURT: Do you have any -- I -- I can't answer
that. Do you have any case law, or statutory law that would
say that you were entitled to that?

MR. BOYLE: No. And, I mean -- I can --

THE COURT: Because the fact of the matter is, seems to
me, I mean -- I've held people who -- I've held you in

contempt. But it is for things that happened directly in

this courtroom. I have a right to do that. I don't want to
have to point a -- at a prosecutor. That's part of my
inherent authority as a judge. If he did that direct -- on a

direct contempt, that's part of his inherent authority as a
judge, rightfully or wrongly. So you're not entitled to a
special prosecutor.

MR. BOYLE: So -- but then would you have the right to
hold me in direct contempt for actions that happen in the
lobby that you're not present for?

THE COURT: I do. Yes, sir.

MR. BOYLE: All right.

THE COURT: I -- I do. And there's cases to that
effect.

MR. BOYLE: And then Singleton acted as a witness and
couldn't let me be cross -- didn't allow me to cross—-examine
him. I couldn't face my accuser, you know. And Singleton

investigated many facts of the case itself. And so, he's out

184





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

14

doing investigations into me, which -- you know, again,
judicial conduct that seems highly inappropriate.

THE COURT: Well, let me say this. All these grounds
along these lines, this is a case that involved a finding of
direct contempt. And so, he has a right to check and see
what the contempt was, to ask questions about it, to hold
hearings about it, and sentence you about that. Maybe other
regulators, but so far, all that is -- is -- is what he has a
right to do. You do not have a right to cross-examine him
either.

MR. BOYLE: Yeah. And I think the biggest points of
contention are that I did not know about the order, the order
was not posted. In the transcripts on page 88, Judge
Singleton says that "Ignorance of the law is no excuse." But
this isn't a law. This is a court order. And to violate a
court order, you have to do it willfully. Which I did not.

I did not willfully violate the order. The only time -- the
only hearing we've had is on the events of May 24th.

I know that allegations have been made about May 29th,
but there's been no hearing about May 29th. And I don't
believe there's been any sentencing for any events that
occurred on May 29th. The sentencing orders are of course,
very vague. They don't really give time, or date, or even
exact events, or description of the events. But -- and I

think that that's another issue with the orders from Judge
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Singleton being vague, but I did not know of the order.

The order was not posted as mandated in the order
itself. The order says, "He shall post notice of the order
on the door." That is a mandate. And he did not. And the
reason is -- is because you can't enforce an order that
someone isn't aware of. And so, I clearly was not aware.

And -- and the transcripts clearly go through that. Multiple
witnesses testify that they have no way of knowing if I was
aware of the order.

And Judge Green testifies that the notice of the order
was not posted on the courthouse door at that time. And then
the other big one is that I was denied an attorney after
being granted an attorney, and no continuance. I mean -- I
should have been allowed to have an attorney.

I think that's part of the debacle that we're having
now, 1is that -- you know, when I'm looking for an attorney to
defend me, in this case, the criminal appeals attorneys tell

me they don't work in circuit courts, they work in appeals

court, and they've just never heard -- they didn't -- they
didn't want to come up from Columbia or whatever. I tried --
I tried with multiple. I had one give me a -- you know, say

he would do it with a $10,000 retainer.
And then I went and tried to find the retainer, and I
almost had it. And I called him back and said, "I almost

have the money." And he said -- he turned it down. He said,
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"T can't -- I can't represent you." And I'm like, "Man." He
said, "I only work in Columbia." He said, "I didn't realize
that."

He's like, "I'm not" -- he's like, "I'm not doing a

criminal appeals case in anything other than the criminal
court.”" And then -- you know, this request to destroy
evidence. Part of the reason that -- or the reason I've been
recording in the courtroom is because of this October 24th
where I was accused of --

THE COURT: You cannot court-record in the courtroom.

MR. BOYLE: Well, sorry —-- sorry. In the courtroom
while in the courthouse lobby. Sorry -- sorry. So in the
courthouse lobby -- I had been accused of committing a crime

in the courthouse lobby. And that crime supposedly banned
me. And there -- there was -- that was a debacle. And so, I
recorded because I didn't want to be accused of committing
another crime in the lobby.

And so, I want everyone to know that I'm keeping a calm
demeanor, and I'm being relaxed. And so, when I recorded
myself on May 29th, I was staying very calm, and I recorded
myself in large part just to show that I am not breaking any
rules. And in the courthouse lobby that's not prohibited, in
the whole lobby. And so, when he asked me to delete my video
or go to jail -- I mean -- he gave me these options: to

delete the video, or go to jail.
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I'm not going to delete the video because I feel if I
do, he can now come back and make another false accusation
against me of committing crimes in the lobby. So I really
felt that that was not right. And then -- you know, finally
the South Carolina Supreme Court administrative order itself,
I feel is troublesome. I feel that it severely infringes on
First Amendment rights.

THE COURT: Well -- and let me say this, that comes
from the chief justice.

MR. BOYLE: Right.

THE COURT: And so, he is the head of the judiciary.
If he says that we have to do it, you have to take that one
up with him. Okay?

MR. BOYLE: Right.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BOYLE: But also says you can confiscate phones
with no due process, and things like that, so. But -- but,
yes. I -- I -- and so, that would be my argument with my
primary arguments resting on that, I was never made aware of
the order, there's a double-jeopardy problem, and I was
denied an attorney.

THE COURT: All right. Let's go two seconds. Give me
-— I'm on the walk out. I need to get a brief break, and
I'll be right back. Don't go anywhere. Okay?

MR. BOYLE: All right. Thanks, sir.

188





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18

THE COURT: All right.

(Off the record at 10:38 a.m.)

THE COURT: Tell me when you're ready.

THE CLERK: You're good.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

MR. BOYLE: So I filed initial brief of appellate
issues on appeal and designation of matter. And so far the
respondents have not replied to any of the merits of the case
whatsoever.

THE COURT: 1Is this what you're talking about following
the probate appellate rules? Is that what you're talking
about?

MR. BOYLE: Well, yeah. Just a timeline of -- that I
feel that they should file a response to my brief, and I
should get to update my brief and things like that before the
appeal is actually ruled upon. Unless you're going to rule
in my favor on the appeal, in which case I understand because
I feel there's a --

THE COURT: It sounded like he's going to jail. Let's

make a deal. Let me say this to you. I -- this is -- you
know, no undoubtedly you were criminally sanctioned. It's no
question in my mind that this was not a civil contempt. It
was a criminal contempt. However, it -- it doesn't -- it's

not a probate matter. It's Jjust a matter that happened at --

at the probate court.
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So I don't think that the probate rules would apply to
your case on appeal. I think it's Jjust an appeal of a
criminal contempt finding. Okay, sir? So I -- if -- if your
argument is that the county has not followed the probate
court appellate rules, I don't think they apply. I think I
told you that once before.

MR. BOYLE: Yeah. And my argument isn't so much that,
is that they haven't even responded to any of the merits of
the case whatsocever. Right. I would like to see a response
to the merits of the case so I can see their response then
prepare my defense accordingly.

THE COURT: Well, the matter -- this case -- I may be
just missing something, but you got put in jail, and you were
found in contempt -- I mean, and put in jail. And you were
appealing that finding of your contempt in the circumstances
around 1t, correct?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And so, that is the issue before the Court,
is your contempt in the findings of contempt in your
incarceration, 1s that correct?

MR. BOYLE: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BOYLE: And I'd like to add one -- oh, sorry. Go
ahead.

THE COURT: No -- no. That's -- go ahead.
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MR. BOYLE: And then one other thing. You know, I -- I
was trying to go through the laws, and, I mean -- again, it's
a little confusing, but I saw that -- you know, in a jail

sentence you only serve about two thirds of the time you're
sentenced to.

THE COURT: Well, that -- you're talking about
Department of Corrections and that depends on the nature of
those charges. This is the finding from the judge, and what
happens on contempt, you serve day-for-day. Okay?

MR. BOYLE: 1Is -- all right. I couldn't find that law.
I looked for it.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, there's no statute that says
you will get one third, or two thirds, or 85 percent from the
judge's contempt order. You serve day-for-day. Okay? And
you won't ever find it because it's not out there. Okay?

MR. BOYLE: All right.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, sir.

MR. BOYLE: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. LOGAN: May it please the Court?

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. LOGAN: There are multiple motions on the roster,
as you can see, to be argued. With the Court's permission, I
would like to go to the motion to dismiss/summary judgment.

The reason summary Jjudgment was added because of all the
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confusing motions that had been filed by the appellate. I
don't know exactly what all he is seeking.

But what I am seeking now, based upon your recent
order, and I filed this motion for -- for dismissal shortly
after that order that you signed, dealing with dismissal of
the Dorothy Pierce case that was filed, based upon the
grounds of judicial immunity.

And the order contained the same language that was in
the -- the district court order which dismissed her case wit
prejudice. This case -- his case seek -- 1s seeking damages
and injunctive release. The order that -- that you signed
had the -- in Dorothy Pierce's case, has the fact in it that
Judge Singleton has judicial immunity. If a challenged
judicial act was unauthorized by law, the judge still has
immunity from suit.

Whether an act is judicial or non-judicial rates --
relates to the nature of the act, whether it is function --
whether it is a functional normally -- function normally
performed by a judge, or whether the parties dealt with the
judge in his judicial capacity.

THE COURT: Well, let me ask a question. Mr. Boyle
appealed his sentence.

MR. LOGAN: Yes.

THE COURT: Which he had a right to do. Was there a

separate suit brought for any of these other grounds?

21

h
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MR. LOGAN: 1In this other paperwork he has filed, he
includes all of this other stuff --

THE COURT: In the appeal?

MR. LOGAN: -- is my -- is my -- is my point.

THE COURT: I got you.

MR. LOGAN: So, which I had to respond to in some form.
It's not a typical appeal, Judge.

THE COURT: Not at all. All right.

MR. LOGAN: And --

THE COURT: Let -- let me say this --

MR. LOGAN: I just wanted to cover the fact that
whether it's a -- a sub -- whether it's a summary judgment
that's appropriate, or whether it's a motion to dismiss
appeal, judicial immunity applies to everything he said.
Everything he said dealt with what the judge did in his
courtroom. And -- and one other thing about this thing being
posted, no, it's not on the door, but the -- the handle to
the door going into the probate court's office is on the
left-hand side of the door.

Right above the left-hand side of the door where the
doorknob is, is a post board. And on that board, clearly
obvious, is this order. And for him to take the position
that he was totally ignorant of that, all he had to do was
open his eyes when he went through that door, and it was

there. So he even -- he even attached a document dealing
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with judicial immunity. Apparently, a law review article.
He -- first of all, he didn't copy the whole thing, and
he left off the fact that the -- the guy who wrote this was

trying to argue for judicial immunity to be excluded from the

civil side. So it has no bearing. The -- the -- the law in
this state is what I have put what -- in your previous order
and Dorothy Pierce, and what I put in this -- this petition
to throw this case out -- throw this appeal out. Thank you,
sir.

THE COURT: All right. Let -- let me say this, Mr.
Pierce. 1I'm pursuing -- I'm looking at this case solely as a
criminal appeal. Okay? From probate court. All those other
allegations, you can't add to a criminal appeal. It's not
appropriate procedure. I'm going to dismiss those without

prejudice. You have to file suit if you think that's the

thing to do.

You have to do that in a separate pleading. It has to
be served, and all the things that have -- the formalities
have to be followed, but not in an appeal. You can't do it
on an appeal. Okay, sir? 1It's just not -- it's not --

you're not allowed. But I'll be glad on the criminal
response to hear you to what Mr. -- counsel said.

MR. BOYLE: Oh, yeah. Thank you, sir. So a couple
things. The -- when you enter the probate court lobby, it is

true the handle is on the left side, and you're walking in --
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back behind to your left, there's a bulletin board. The
claim is that on that bulletin board that the order was
posted, right? An order that you know is dense with text
multiple pages long, no one's going to stop and read that.

That's why the order actually doesn't say to post the
order. It says to post contents of the order. And with all
respect, like your clerk's office did, your Honor, when you
enter the court, on the door is notice of the order in very
clear, bold language that says, “No use of electronic
devices.”

I don't think it's reasonable to expect everyone that
walks through that door to stop and read a three-page
document. That's in small fine print. And that's what the

situation was at the probate court. But the order itself

says, "It shall be -- notice of the order shall be posted on
the board." This is that Harvard Review article onto --
THE COURT: I - I -—-—-I'm familiar with it, Mr. --

MR. BOYLE: All right. So judicial order --

THE COURT: And it's not relevant to what we're doing.

MR. BOYLE: Yeah -- yeah.

THE COURT: That's argue for position should be, but
not -- they're arguing for positions. They won't -- but
that's not the law.

MR. BOYLE: Yeah. Well, either way, it seems to me

that judicial immunity doesn't apply to this appeal
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whatsoever because it is just protection from civil side of
things. And then -- you know, the other arguments that --

THE COURT: Now, judicial -- judicial immunity is just
not protection from civil side. It's judicial immunity.
Okay? And he's -- he is immune.

MR. BOYLE: From criminal prosecution, from sanctions,
from disciplinary actions, from everything?

THE COURT: Disciplinary actions? No. I mean -- we're
all subject to being disciplined by the office of
disciplinary counsel, or whoever the body governs him. I'm -
- disciplinary counsel body, but if I make a mistake up here,
I'm immune in my -- in my -- when I'm performing duties as a
judge.

MR. BOYLE: No. And I did a fair bit of research, I
couldn't find anything that showed that judicial immunity
applied outside of civil infractions.

THE COURT: Well, it is there. But let me just say
this to you. How many days did you do in jail?

MR. BOYLE: I want to say 38 or 39.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Anything further?

MR. BOYLE: Yes, sir. In his response in his summary
judgment -- in his memorandum on the summary Jjudgment, it is
a cut and paste verbatim from the Pierce case. He literally

took the argument that he used in my wife's case where she is

actually filing a civil suit against Judge Singleton trying
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to break his jurisdiction. Right?

Mine is not a civil suit of any sort. He literally cut
and paste. The document itself calls me “Her” multiple
times. It doesn't even say “Him”. It refers to a federal
case that I had. I never had a federal case of any sort.
It's a cut and paste. I mean -- this is -- I don't know. I
think it's sanctionable, honestly, sir. I don't understand.

It is completely inappropriate.

THE COURT: It's not sanctionable, but -- but go ahead.
MR. BOYLE: But it -- it -- it doesn't even involve
this case. His motion doesn't involve this case.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BOYLE: And he didn't -- and again, he didn't reply
to any of the factual allegations I made ever. He cut and
pasted my issues in -- to appeal, and claims that the issues
who appeal don't state a claim. Issues on appeal aren't
supposed to state a claim. And he references Rule 56 for
summary judgment. That doesn't apply to appeal. He
references Rule 12(b) (6), that's a civil thing, that has
nothing to do with this appeal.

THE COURT: Well, let me say this. I think that under
the circumstances, because of the way you've added claims
that are not really part of appeal, probably the better part
of valor was potentially just add those things, because who

knows. Here's the rule that is going to be from this Court,
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and this -- this is a criminal appeal. Any claims that you
make about Mr. Singleton, or entitlement to monies, or
anything else like that, you have to bring in a separate
suit.

And -- and so, to the extent you've alleged anything
other than grounds challenging your incarceration, or
dismissed, okay? Without prejudice. Then you can do
whatever you think you want to, and you can seek counsel, or
not. That's up to you. As far as the criminal sanction is
concerned, I'm -- first, I'm going to find that you've served
enough time. I'm not going to make you serve any more time.
That's it.

MR. BOYLE: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I will take the other matters in
consideration. Let me look at them. But that -- my ruling
means the rest of these motions are moot. There's nothing
there to take, there's nothing to do. 0Okay? Do you
understand me?

MR. BOYLE: I do, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. I'm on —--

MR. BOYLE: Thank you.

THE COURT: 1I'll give you an order that when I -- after
I read that.

MR. LOGAN: And, your Honor, I -- I -- I just -- all

right. He's -- what -- what does he have time to do now?
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What -- what does -- he needs to file another claim just for
these other things? Is that what -- what you're saying?
That's not part of the contempt. So the contempt is gone, is
that right? If -- if he's released from -- from doing any
further time? Or does that -- what -- that's the only thing
he can pursue in this case?

THE COURT: Any claims that have a civil claim to --
all he's doing is appealing the criminal findings of
contempt. Now, I think I held you in contempt myself. I'm
not sure. I can't even remember now. But all I'm dealing
with is an appeal from a criminal case of contempt.

Because it is clearly a criminal contempt. All the
other claims are dismissed without prejudice. If he feels
like he needs to file a sitting, that's his right. And then
you all just have to defend it as it goes. Okay?

MR. LOGAN: So as we go forward with the con -- the

criminal side, he is prohibited from raising anything outside

of that criminal --7

THE COURT: What -- there's nothing to go forward on --
on the criminal side. He's been sentenced, he's been --
served 38 days, whatever. I've vacated the rest of his

sentence. And I'm going to determine whether or not he's
right on his appeal, or not right on his appeal. Okay?
MR. LOGAN: Okay. So you going to rule on the motion

as far as judicial immunity?
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THE COURT: Well, there's no question he has judicial
immunity, but there's no claims there. Okay? And he -- what
I'm saying is --

MR. LOGAN: I -- I'm saying he has to reconsider.

THE COURT: I'm saying here, Mr. Logan, that this is a

criminal appeal.

Anything outside of that is dismissed. Do

I need to say that anymore?

MR. LOGAN:

fact that

make sure

THE

This is a criminal appeal,

I'm not dealing with another lawyer,
things are clear,

COURT:

I'm just trying to get -- because of the

I just want to
Judge. If (crosstalk).
Well, I'm trying to be clear as I can be.

anything else out there is

dismissed, and he has to file another suit. Okay?
MR. LOGAN: All right.
THE COURT: And I -- I don't know how else to say it.
I don't mean to be out loud, I apologize. But it's just -- I

-— I -— I get a

else out there.

MR. LOGAN:
THE COURT:
MR. LOGAN:

whole time.

THE COURT:
MR. LOGAN:
so rude.

little frustrated because there's nothing

Okay.
All right?
Well, I've been frustrated throughout this

I understand that.

And so, excuse me if I came across as being
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all of which is

MR. LOGAN:
THE COURT:
MR. LOGAN:
MR. BOYLE:
THE COURT:
MR. BOYLE:
THE COURT:

No, sir. You didn't. It is just this --
one of those days. Okay. All right?

Thank you, sir.

You all have a good day.

Appreciate it.

Is that it for today, sir?

It is.

Thank you, your Honor.

Yes, sir.

(THERE BEING NOTHING FURTHER, THIS HEARING CONCLUDED AT

10:57 A.M.)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE PROBATE COURT

COUNTY OF: OCONEE RULE TO SHOW CAUSE
IN THE MATTER OF:

DOYLE ELTON PIERCE CASE NUMBER: 2020ES3700532

(Decedent)
TO: JASON BOYLE TO:
Personal Representative Personal Representative
Address: 720 MOURNING DOVE LANE Address:

SENECA, SC 29678

Telephone (Work): Telephone (Work)
(Home): (Home)

(Cell): (Cell)

Email: Email

YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED TO APPEAR AT THE OCONEE COUNTY PROBATE COURT ON THE DATE AND TIME
LISTED BELOW TO SHOW CAUSE IF ANY YOU CAN, WHY SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT OF COURT FOR
FAILING TO FOLLOW THE ORDER OF THE CHIEF JUSTICE OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA SUPREME COURT
REGARDING RECORDING IN A COURTHOUSE AND OR CLERK WINDOW. THIS COURT IS GIVING YOU NOTICE
THAT YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO COUNSEL SHOULD YOU CHOOSE.

DATE: JUNE 17, 2024

TIME: 10:00 AM

PLACE: 415 S PINE STREET WALHALLA, SC 29691 (ROOM 202)

Executed this 6™ day of June, 2024.

Duwedde GCurlo

[[1 Danny Singleton., Probate Judge
m Griselda L Godoy., Sr. Assoc. Judg
[] Erin Green., Associate Judge

cc. Attorney:
Address:

FORM #124ES (1/2014)
62-3-704, general

203





STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE PROBATE COURT

|
COUNTY OF: OCONEE ) RULE TO SHOW CAUSE
)
IN THE MATTER OF: )
DOYLE ELTON PIERCE ) CASE NUMBER: 2020ES3700532
(Decedent) )
TO: JASON BOYLE TO:
Personal Representative Personal Representative
Address: 720 MOURNING DOVE LANE Address:
SENECA, SC 29678
Telephone (Work): Telephone (Work):
(Home): (Home):
(Cell): (Cell):
Email: Email:

YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED TO APPEAR AT THE OCONEE COUNTY PROBATE COURT ON THE DATE AND TIME
LISTED BELOW TO SHOW CAUSE IF ANY YOU CAN, WHY SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT OF COURT FOR
FAILING TO FOLLOW THE ORDER OF THE CHIEF JUSTICE OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA SUPREME COURT
REGARDING RECORDING IN A COURTHOUSE AND OR CLERK WINDOW. THIS COURT IS GIVING YOU NOTICE
THAT YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO COUNSEL SHOULD YOU CHOOSE.

FAILURE TO APPEAR AS REQUIRED SHALL BE CAUSE FOR CONTEMPT AND FURTHER SANCTIONS BY THIS
COURT. BY COURT RULE, THE 10 DAY NOTICE IS HEREBY WAIVED.

DATE: JUNE 5, 2024

TIME: _11:00 AM

PLACE: OCONEE COUNTY PROBATE COURT 415 S PINE STREET WALHALLA, SC 29691

Executed this 28th day of May 2024.

Ly 5*

m: Danny Singleton., Probate Judge
7 Griselda L Godoy., Sr. Assoc. Judge
[ Erin Green., Associate Judge

cc.  Attorney:
Address:

FORM #124ES (1/2014)
62-3-704, general
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF OCONEE

IN THE PROBATE COURT

Case #: 2020-ES.37-00532

In The Matter of:

Doyle Elton Pierce,
Decedent,

MOTION TO DISMISS

Ex Rel. Jason Boyle,
Defendant.

e N S S e e S N N e

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the alleged Contemner in the above captioned action, Jason
Boyle, will move before the Presiding Judge at the Oconee County Probate Court, located at
415 South Pine Street Walhalla. South Carolina, on Monday, 17th June. 2024 for an Order
granting the dismissal of the instant contempt action alleged against him that was brought by
way of a sua sponte rule to show cause summons dated 10th June, 2024.

This motion is based on the fact that among other things, the Court is without jurisdiction to
punitively sanction the Defendant for criminal contempt pursuant to a South Carolina Supreme
Court Administrative Order. Furthermore, as will be more particularly set forth in the
Memorandum In Support of this motion, the evidence will show that the Defendant’s actions do
not meet the threshold to sustain a finding of criminal contempt beyond a reasonable doubt

pursuant to S.C Code Ann. § 14-1-150. See also, State v. Sowell, 370 S.C. 330, 635 S.E.2d 81

(2006) (in South Carolina the burden of proof for criminal contempt actions is beyond a
reasonable doubt).

A memorandum in support! of this motion is contemporaneously filed herewith.

1 See, Defendant’s Memorandum In Support of Motion To Dismiss for additional sustaining grounds, the
relevant factual basis, and arguments at law in support of this motion hereof.

Page 1 of 2
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WHEREFORE, now into court comes the Defendant, of whom respectfully moves this Court
for an order dismissing the contempt of court action of 10th June, 2024 and any such collateral
actions associated therewith. The Defendant also moves this Court for any other relief that the
Court deems just and proper.

I SO MOVE!

Respectfully Submitted,

Yy ,,?
By: .%\ é’f&' )

/ Jason Boyle, PhD

0 Mourning Dove Lane
Seneca, South Carolina 29678
(864) 245-3278
jasonboyle03@gmail.com
FOR THE DEFENDANT

14th June, 2024
Seneca, South Carolina
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF OCONEE

IN THE PROBATE COURT

Case #: 2020-ES-37-00632

In The Matter of:

Doyle Elton Pierce,
Decedent, MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT

OF MOTION TO DISMISS

Ex Rel. Jason Boyle,

Defendant.

R e —y

The Defendant, Jason Boyle, hereby submits the following Memorandum In Support of a
Motion To Dismiss the alleged contempt of court action brought against him by way of a sua
sponte Rule To Show Cause and will show unto the Court the following in support thereof; to
wit;

[. INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND

On or about 24th May, 2024, Jason Boyle presented to the Probate Court for the purpose of
paying an invoice for file copies requested by his fiancé, Dorothy Pierce related to the above
captioned action’s underlying estate matter. While present in the lobby / public area of the
probate court facility, Mr. Boyle was recording a video on his cell phone which captured merely
the common public area of the court facility as well as his brief interaction with court personnel.
Due to these acts, the Probate Court Judge, Hon. Danny Singleton issued a rule to show cause
(hereinafter “RTSC”) summons requiring Mr. Boyle to show cause why he should not be held in
contempt of court for allegedly “violating the order? of the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of
South Carolina regarding recording in a court or at a clerk’s window.”

The instant litigation followed; of which the Defendant contends consists of an allegation that

1 The Supreme Court Administrative Order is attached and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.
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is based on a misapprehension of the law; and therefore is an abuse of discretion, borne out of an
error of law, and is a blatant judicial overreach. Therefore, the Defendant respectfully requests
that this Court carefully consider the following facts and legal argument set forth irfra in support
of the Defendant’s motion to dismiss. The Defendant also asserts his right to a trial by jury,
inviolate; pursuant to the controlling authority found in the common law of South Carolina. See,

Taylor v. Haves, 418 U.S. 488, 94 S.Ct. 2697, 41 L.Ed.2d 897 (1974). See also, Lewis v. United

States, 518 U.S. 322 (1990) “A jury trial is preferable for criminal contempt matters in order to

avoid arbitrary action by a judge in a potentially heated context.” Rhod v. State, 372 S.C. 100,

641 S.E.2d 35 (Ct. App. 2007), citing Lewis, at 518 U.S. 322 (1996)).

II. THE CONTEMPT POWER OF THE COURT

An adjudication of contempt in a contempt of court action is within the sound discretion of the

Trial Judge. See, Whetstone v. Whetstone, 309 S.C. 227, 420 S.E.2d 877 (Ct. App. 1992). “The

[finding of contempt] is subject to reversal when such is based on a finding that is without
evidentiary support or when there has been an abuse of discretion.” Whetstone, supra.

South Carolina’s jurisprudence indicates that the long standing practice in the courts of this
state is to impose the contempt power of the courts sparingly" (emphasis supplied). See, McCall
v. McCall, 303 S.C. 452, 401 S.EE2d 193 (Ct. App. 1991) (Contempt should be imposed

sparingly and will be reversed when based on a finding without evidentiary support). McCall

303 S.C at 452 (Ct. App. 1991). Contempt is an exireme measure and the power to adjudge in

contempt is pot to be lightly asserted (emphasis supplied). See, State v. Harper, 207 S.C, 257,

376 SE.2d 272 (1989).
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III. THE PROBATE COURT IS DEVOID OF JURISDICTION

The Probate Court is devoid of jurisdiction to bring an allegation of contempt on its own

motion when the order in question is an administrative order of the Supreme Court of South

Carolina.

The body of law in South Carolina is hitherto devoid of any matter in which an allegation of

contempt of court was found beyond a reasonable doubt? with respect to the alleged violation of

an administrative order of the Supreme Court (enforced criminally by a Probate Court).
Notwithstanding the fact that the Defense has conducted diligent research of an exhaustive
nature, the instant case appears to arise from an unprecedented issue at law with respect to both
the procedural posture as well as the substantive nuances surrounding the etiology, and quite
frankly, nearly the entirety of the instant case hereof.

It is the Defendant’s position that the instant contempt action is void, ab initio. “One cannot be
held in contempt for violating an order that was void ab initio for lack of jurisdiction.” Arnal v.
Fraser, 371 S.C. 124, 241 SE.2d 409 (1978).

Chiefly, a Defendant is required to have actual notice of the particulars of the specified court
order in which it is alleged he has purportedly violated. It is also a necessary prerequisite
condition that said defendant have prior notice of said court order. See, Frank v. Frank, 311 S.C.
454,429 SE.2d 823 (Ct. App. 1993). Mr. Boyle asserts that it would be a contravention of the

second law of thermodynamics to allege that he had any such prerequisite notice beforehand; as

2 Reasonable doubt is the standard of proof and the onus probandi is on the moving party to prove criminal
contempt. See, State v. Sowell, 370 S.C. 330, 635 S.E.2d 81 (2006). Contrasted with civil contempt; wherein:
civil contempt is proved by clear and convincing evidence (emphasis added). As such, the Defendant still
holds the position that the allegations do not meet even this lesser burden of proof.
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he had no knowledge of the administrative order prior at any point in time prior to the court
making the decision to issue the instant RTSC, sua sponte. This assertion is based on the fact that
regardless of the purported posting of said order in some hallway as the Court alleges but has not
proven, Mr. Boyle cannot be expected to avail himself of ambiguous administrative orders
posted without proper notice; and then have such order that he was never previously served, of
which is a jurisdictionally devoid administrative order, used against him as supporting evidence
to make a finding of contempt. This is especially true when in this realm’s accepted doctrine of
the space-time continuum: Mr. Boyle could not logically be said to have any reasonable
opportunity to take notice of this (purportedly) posted order in a nondescript location (still yet to
be located) of a multi-use, public hallway or otherwise.

The single case that could be said to be grossly on point is: County of Greenville v. Mann, 347

S.C. 427, 556 S.E.2d 383 (2001). In County of Greenville v. Mann (citation omitted), it was held

that: “the circuit court ordered the county clerk to oversee the destruction of guns that had been
exhibits in trials. The county clerk had one of his employees and a deputy take the guns to a
recycling plant. When the deputy called the county clerk and expressed an interest in owning
some of the guns, the county clerk told the deputy and the employee to keep the guns they
wanted. On appeal, the supreme court found that the circuit court's order was ambiguous and
contradictory because on the one hand it ordered the county clerk to destroy certain weapons, but
on the other hand it ordered the county clerk to comply with statutes that required him to conduct

a public auction of the weapons.”

Although it is clear that the issues in Mann are comprised of a starkly different fat set,

nevertheless Mann is distinguishable and has import to the instant case because the order was
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ambiguous and contradictory. As such, the authority arising from the Mann decision instructs us
that the county clerk could not be held in contempt for failing to comply with the order.
Furthermore, the circuit court did not have the authority to order the destruction of the weapons

which the South Carolina Legislature had specifically indicated by S.C. Code Ann. § 16-23-500

(repealed 1998) were to be auctioned. Thusly, it is reasonable to assert that there is a nexus
between the instant case and the controlling authority derived from Mann; in that herein, as was
the the gravamen of the Mann case: the fact that an ambiguous order, of which a non-attorney
individual is not expected to be able to interpret cannot be the “order in question” of which a
finding of contempt of court is based upon.

Furthermore, the Defendant vehemently objects to this Court’s notion that it can lawfully
enforce an administrative order from a higher court through an RTSC that carries punitive
criminal implications with respect to the potential sanctions. Due to the fact that the potential
penalties that the Court argues it can impose (and will likely impose) should the Court be given
free reign to continue with the instant prosecution, there is no question that a sentence of
confinement is a criminal punishment. As such, even if the Probate Court could prevail on its
position that an administrative order from a higher court is criminally sanctionable, it is the
Defendant’s position that a sentence of incarceration is harsh medicine. Far too harsh of a penalty
for the alleged violation in the instant case.

B) The Alleged Contemner Did Not Have Proper Notice To Satisfy The Relevant Predicate
Requirements That Our Jurisprudence Demands Regarding Contempt Actions

Mr. Boyle was not on notice that an Administrative Order Could be utilized as the basis for

bringing criminal contempt proceedings against a citizen of South Carolina, of whom is not an
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attorney and not expected to be apprised of the nuances of Supreme Court edicts, issued for the
benefit of the Bar and the general public with no clause or provisions specified therein as it
relates to the extension of contempt power to lower courts with respect to the potentiality of
using such as grounds for criminal enforcement of such orders; nor any notice properly given
whatsoever. As such, it 1s our position that, at a minimum, the instant contempt allegation should
not survive a threshold analysis. Therefore, it should be held that the Probate Court does not have
standing to hold a member of the public in criminal contempt for violating an order that did not
originate from that particular court.
C) Threshold Notice Requirement Not Satisfied

[ will draw the Court’s attention to the following fact set that unequivocally elucidates the
above contention, to wit: Mr. Boyle was never properly on actual notice of the possible
sanctions’ this particular administrative order is said to carry. For the law in South Carolina is
clear and unambiguous; in that, the Probate Court does not have lawful standing to prosecute this
action when the alleged contemner is not on notice of the acts of which could be argued are

clearly violative of a particular court order, enforceable by a Court’s contempt power. See, Frank

v. Frank, 311 S.C. 454, 429 SE.2d 823 (Ct. App. 1983). For the Court’s consideration is the

procedural requirement that an alleged condemner be personally served with the particular order
in which it is alleged he is in contempt of, prior to the finding of contempt; or otherwise have

actual notice of such order’s contents. See, Frank v. Frank, supra.

3 Sanctions of which the Defense asserts are not enforceable pursuant to, inter alia, a lack of jurisdiction to
impose and enforce said sanctions when the order in question did not originate in the Probate Court.
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Clearly, Mr. Boyle was never personally served this order. Also, as set forth above, Mr. Boyle
never had any actual notice of the administrative order he allegedly violated. Thusly, one cannot
reasonably be expected to logically draw any inference regarding actual notice (or any notice at
all). Certainly, the ambiguity of the order’s contents, the lack of notice, and the extreme nature of
confining a citizen pursuant to a finding of criminal contempt does not satisty the onus probandi
of beyond a reasonable doubt, with respect to the instant case (emphasis added). Therefore, the
Defense asserts that it is incumbent upon the Probate Court to enter a finding of which dismisses
the instant contempt allegation with prejudice as the ends of justice and the laws of South
Carolina demand.

D) An Individual Cannot Be Convicted of Contempt For The Violation of Orders That Are
Void or Ambiguous

“Disobedience of a void order or one that is issued by a judge without jurisdiction is not

contempt.” State ex rel. McLeod. v. Holcomb, 245 S.C. 63, 66, 138 S.C. 707 (1964). “A party

may not be convicted of contempt for violation of a court order that fails to tell him in definite
terms what he must do. The order must contain a mandatory or prohibitive provision and it must
be so clearly expressed that when applied to the act complained of it will appear with reasonable
certainty that it has been violated. Furthermore a party should not be punished for disobedience

of an order where its language can be construed in a manner consistent with innocence”

(emphasis added). See, Western Carolina Reg. Sewer Authority v. Bell, 282 S.C. 646, 648, 320

S E.2d 487 (Ct. App. 1984) Moreover, the instant contempt allegation has no basis in fact and

the evidence will show that the record is devoid of any proper basis in which to enter a finding of

contempt. “Before a court finds a person in contempt; the record must clearly and with
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specificity reflect the contemptuous conduct.” Brasington v. Shannon, 288 S.C. 183, 184, 341

S.E.2d 130 (1986). The instant allegation is devoid of any indica of merit.

As mentioned above, South Carolina has no case directly on point that aligns with the fact set
of the instant action. Nevertheless, we can find invaluable instruction in the federal
jurisprudence. 1 will draw the Court’s attention to the fact that the Federal Rules confirm that a
party cannot be held in contempt of an ambiguous order. Moreover, the only case on point in the
federal body of law clearly tells us that one cannot be held in contempt for an order that does not
specifically and unambiguously prohibit with particularity, a person’s cell phone use in a court
facility. See, Reitz v. DynCorp International, LLC, 253 F. Supp. 3d 89, 95 (D.D.C 2017). “If the
administrative order was not clear and unambiguous about the prohibition of cell phone use, the

defendant cannot be held in contempt for its violation.” Reitz v. DvnCorp International. LLC,

supra. 1t is the Defendant’s position that the Administrative Order in question herein was

ambiguous and thus he cannot be found to be in contempt of such order.

IV. THE DEFENDANT'S CONDUCT WAS NOT WILLFULLY VIOLATIVE OF
THE ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER

The conduct that comprises the basis of the Court’s allegations, even if established prima
Jfacie, was not perpetrated with a willful intent to infringe the mandates of the purported Supreme
Court Administrative Order. I will draw the Court’s attention to the fact that there is absolutely
no evidence that this alleged act was perpetrated willfully, or with any manner of mens rea that
the law of this state requires when a court is faced with determining whether or not to enter a

finding of criminal culpability.
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“A willful act is an act done voluntarily and intentionally with the specific mtent to do something
the law forbids or with the specific intent to fail to do something the law requires to be done; that
is to say with bad purpose either to disobey ‘intentionally’ or otherwise disregard the law”
(emphasis added). Lx Parte Kent, 379 S.C. 633, 637, 667 S.E.2d 921 (Ct. App. 2008). See also,

State v. Bevilacqua, 316 S.C. 122, 130, 447 S.E.2d 213 (Ct. App. 1994).

Consider the following proposition®, posited in the form of propositional calculuss: If a Court
does not have lawful standing to enforce an order then such order is void ab initio when said
order cannot survive the actual notice requirement (emphasis supplied). Additionally if such
order is clearly void ab initio, then it cannot be said that an alleged violator has a logical means
to be in willful violation thereof.

As such, the Probate Court does not have lawful standing to prosecute this action when the
alleged contemner 1s not on notice of the acts of which are clearly violate of a particular court
order; enforceable by a Court’s contempt power. For the Court’s consideration is the procedural
requirement that an alleged condemner be personally served with the particular order in which it
is alleged he is in contempt of, prior to the finding of contempt; or he must otherwise have actual

notice of such order’s contents. See, Frank v. Frank, 311 S.C. 454, 429 SE.2d 823 (Ct. App.

1983).
The authority in South Carolina is clear: a citizen of South Carolina cannot be held in

contempt of an order that he did not willfully violate. See, Lox Parte Kent, 379 S.C. 633, 637, 667

S.E2d 921 (Ct. App. 2008).

4 This is an, If P—> Q analysis.

5 Also known as propositional logic (commonly styled in academia as Logic 101). See, Lemon, et. al., An

Introduction To Logic (1963).
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I will draw the Court’s attention the the element of intent. Whereby, the controlling precedent
from the appellate courts in our state instructs us that willfulness or criminal intent is an essential
element that must be found in order to adjudicate a Defendant guilty of criminal contempt. See

generally, State v. Bevilacqua, 316 S.C. 122, 130, 447 S.E.2d 213 (Ct. App. 1994). “Contempt

results from the willful disobedience of a court order; and before a person may be held in
contempt, the record must be clear and specific as to the acts or conduct upon which the conduct
is based.” Bevilacqua, 316 S.C. at 130 (Ct. App. 1994). “Intent is a necessary element in criminal
contempt findings.” State v. Scott, 269 S.C. 542, 238 S.E.2d 217 (1977).

There is not a basis upon which the Court can prove Mr. Boyle had any specific intent to act
with a bad purpose nor can it be established that he had a willfully criminal mens rea. Mr. Boyle
contends that he did not have any intent to perpetrate an act that the law forbids nor fail to adhere
to any lawful requirements of a court order.

The instant allegation also falls short of establishing a basis upon which a finding of direct
contempt can be sustained. Consider, State v. Jolly, 405 S.C. 622, 749 S.E.2d 114 (Ct. App.
2013); which is instructive regarding the elements of direct contempt. “A person may be found
guilty of direct contempt if his conduct interferes with judicial proceedings, exhibits disrespect
for the court or hampers the parties or witnesses in a court proceeding.” State v. Jolly, supra.

Here again there is no evidence that can be established to support a finding of direct contempt.
Mr. Boyle has legitimate reasons why he was recording, for such activity is protected under the
First Amendment of the United States Constitution.

Also, Mr. Boyle legitimately had reason to fear the potentiality of his rights being violated by

the Hon. Danny. Singleton. This fear is based on the fact that, at the time of the filing of the
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instant RTSC, his fiancéé had been subjected to an onslaught of judicial vindictiveness; to
include not one (1) but four (4) previous RTSC summonses for contempt of court, three (3) of
which were sua sponte. Mr. Boyle has also been subjected to one (1) additional judicially
vindictive sua sponte RTSC himself, of which is totally unrelated to the instant action. As such,
Mr. Boyle did not feel that his rights or fundamental liberty interests could be safely upheld
without recording his interactions in the public area of the court facility. For he had no intention
of recording in the prohibited areas of the courthouse; such as in the courtroom or a judge’s
chambers. For prior to being subjected to these allegations, he had no other business at the
courthouse and did not foresee a reason to ever need to be in the actual courtroom.

Moreover, Mr. Boyle did not, nor does he ever intend to record in a courtroom nor be
disruptive of any aspect of court business. The evidence will show that despite the allegation, his
actions never in fact, rose to that level. Thusly, it is the Defendant’s position that the instant
contempt allegation is unjust, designed to deprive Mr. Boyle of his Constitutional rights, and is
the result of a judicially vindictive overreach.

“Judicial vindictiveness refers to the concept where a defendant is subjected to a harsher
sentence or punishment due to the exercise of a legal right, such as an appeal or a motion for a
new trial. In South Carolina, the presumption of vindictiveness may arise if a litigant establishes
that circumstances surrounding the initiation of a certain action posed a realistic likelihood of
vindictiveness (emphasis added). See, State v. Odom, 412 S.C. 253, 772 S.E.2d 149 (2015). “The

inquiry into vindictiveness is not focused solely on the presence or absence of actual vindictive

6 Mr. Boyle’s fiancé Dorothy Pierce is a litigant in the underlying estate matter. At the time in which the
alleged contemptuous acts occurred, Mr. Boyle was conducting lawful business as Mrs. Pierce’s agent.
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motives, but includes whether the action taken, which exposes the accused to an increased
punishment, poses such a reasonable likelihood of vindictiveness as to require a presumption of

vindictiveness.” State v. Blakely, 742 S.E.2d 29 (S.C. Ct. App. 2013). See also, State v. Blakely,

402 S.C. 650 (Ct. App. 2013). Accord, State v. Odom, 412 S.C. 253, 772 SE.2d 149 (2015).
“Judicial vindictiveness is a legal concept that protects defendants from being subjected to
harsher punishments due to the exercise of their legal rights. It is a complex concept that requires

careful consideration of the circumstances surrounding. . .[the] process.” See¢, Davie v. State, 381

S.C. 601, 675 S.E.2d 416 (2009).

PROCED L TANTIVE PROTECTI
It is axiomatic that certain due process protections immediately attach upon the threat of being
held in criminal contempt. As such, Mr. Boyle’s fundamental liberty interests are implicated in
such contempt proceedings; thereby triggering various procedural and Constitutional protections.
An alleged contemner must be afforded the right to counsel and be given adequate time to
secure counsel. Moreover, the statutory law of South Carolina appears to provide that “no citizen
of this state shall be sent to jail for any contempt of court or supposed contempt of court until he

be brought before the court and there be heard by himself, or counsel. . .” S.C Code Ann. §

14-1-150. Mr. Boyle hereby asserts his right to counsel and objects to any trial or evidentiary

hearing being carried out without counsel present.

VI. BURDEN OF PROOF

Due to the fact that this matter is in the posture of a criminal contempt action, Mr. Boyle is

donned 1n the cloak of innocence unless and until proven guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.
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“Reasonable doubt 1s the standard of proof in criminal contempt cases.” See, State v. Sowell, 370

S.C. 330,635 S.E.2d 81 (2000).

VII. PROCEDURAL DEFECTS

It is the position of the Defendant that is improper for Judge Singleton to preside over the
instant contempt action. Considering the fact that Judge Singleton appears to have lost the ability
to discharge his judicial duties fairly and with impartiality pursuant to the Cannons of Judicial

Conduct. See, Rule 501, SCACR. Tt is standard practice for the trial judge of whom initiated a

contempt action to recuse himself from conducting the adjudicative proceeding regarding such
contempt allegation. “The trial judge should excuse himself from contempt proceedings where,
because of personal attacks or other reasons, he would be unlikely to maintain the calm

detachment necessary for fair adjudication.” Taylor v. Hayes, 418 U.S. 488 (1974). See also,

Johnson v. Mississippi, 403 U.S. 212 (1971); Buchanan v. State, 276 S.C. 127, 276 S.E.2d 302

(1981); State v. Bevilacqua, supra.

“The relevant test is not just one of actual bias, but also whether there is such likelihood of
bias or an appearance of bias, that the judge was unable to hold the balance between vindicating

the interests of the court and the interests of the accused.” Taylor v. Hayes, supra.

Finally, it is a procedural aberrancy for the trial judge of whom issues a sua sponte RTSC for
criminal contempt to prosecute the matter from the bench. This also shows that Judge Singleton
is far too personally ensconced in the outcome of this case and has lost his ability to rule in a fair
and impartial fashion. In similar matters, the trial judge would typically appoint a “special
prosecutor.” I submit that there is no reason why Judge Singleton could not appoint the Oconee

County Attorney, a member the Tenth Circuit Solicitor’s Office, or any other competent member
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of the Bar to prosecute the instant case. For these reasons, the Defendant moves this Court for

the appointment of a special prosecutor and for the recusal of the involved judge, Hon. Danny

Singleton from presiding over this contempt action.

VIII. CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, in consideration of the facts and law set forth above and in the
contemporaneously filed Motion To Dismiss, the Defendant hereby moves this Court for an
order dismissing the instant contempt action against Mr. Jason Boyle and for all other relief the
court deems just and proper. The Defense implores this Court to issue a comprehensive order
with findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding the Court’s ruling with respect to each and

every point of law set forth above.

Respectfully Submitted,

J /}
*-i‘f""/ -:/
By: / V7 )

/ Jason Boyle, PhD
50 Mourning Dove Lane
Seneca, South Carolina 29678
(864) 245-3278
jasonboyle03(@gmail.com
FOR THE DEFENDANT

14th June, 2024
Seneca, South Carolina
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THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE OCONEE COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
APPEAL FROM THE PROBATE COURT
TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
The Order of Judge Danny Singleton

CASE NO: 2024-CP-3700451

JASON MICHAEL BOYLE------ Appellant,

DANNY SINGLETON, “et al” ------- --Respondents

MOTION FOR SANCTIONS AGAINST JUDGE DANNY SINGLETON

COMES NOW, Jason Michael Boyle, Appellant, and submits this Motion for Sanctions against
Judge Danny Singleton. This motion is not a mere request for procedural rectification—it is a
demand for accountability in the face of severe and undeniable judicial misconduct that has

violated the very core of the legal principles that uphold our justice system.
I. Factual Background

1. Flagrant Judicial Overreach:

Judge Danny Singleton’s actions in this case go beyond the pale of acceptable judicial conduct—
they constitute an outright abuse of power. Judge Singleton enforced the South Carolina Supreme
Court Administrative Order dated March 9, 2023, which was never properly served or posted as
required. The order explicitly mandates that it "shall" be posted on the courthouse doors—a
mandate that Judge Singleton flagrantly ignored. This failure to post the order, as required, led
directly to my illegal incarceration without any knowledge or notice of the alleged violations.
Judge Singleton’s disregard for this fundamental requirement obliterated any semblance of due

process.
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2. Jurisdictional Usurpation:

Judge Singleton did not stop at enforcing an unserved and unposted order; he dragged the
Oconee County Probate Court into criminal territory where it had no jurisdiction. Probate courts
in South Carolina are confined to estate matters—they have no authority over criminal contempt
proceedings. Judge Singleton’s actions represent a gross violation of jurisdictional boundaries,

making a mockery of the legal system.

3. Legal Farce in Case Numbers:

Judge Singleton’s judicial malpractice is further highlighted by his use of the Doyle Pierce estate
case number for the Rule to Show Cause (RTSC)—a blatant misapplication given that the
contempt charges had nothing to do with that estate. Worse still, the three sentencing orders that
followed had no case numbers at all—a procedural blunder so severe it borders on legal farce. I
was detained for 40 days under orders that lacked even the most basic legal requirement—a case
number—undermining due process entirely. Judge Singleton himself admitted in open court, not
once, but twice, that this case had nothing to do with the Doyle Pierce estate, yet he proceeded to
misuse the estate case number. This absence of case numbers renders the orders not only invalid

but utterly indefensible under any standard of legal scrutiny.

4. Judge Singleton: Judge, Jury, and Executioner:

Judge Singleton didn’t just overstep; he obliterated any semblance of impartiality. Acting as the
sua sponte moving party, the victim, the prosecutor, and a key witness in the proceedings, he
fused these roles into a grotesque parody of justice. This egregious blending of roles rendered
any notion of a fair trial impossible. Judge Singleton’s conduct is a textbook example of why

unchecked judicial power is so dangerous.

5. Systematic Violations of Constitutional Rights:

Judge Singleton’s actions are not just unethical—they are unconstitutional. I was denied due
process, deprived of legal representation, and subjected to a sham trial where Judge Singleton
had already decided the outcome. His conduct has no place in any court of law and raises serious

questions about his fitness to serve on the bench.

I1. Legal Argument
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Canon 3D(1) of the South Carolina Code of Judicial Conduct mandates that a judge who
becomes aware of another judge’s misconduct, especially when it raises questions about that
judge’s fitness for office, must report it. The misconduct in this case is not just apparent; it is
undeniable. Judge Singleton’s actions grossly violate the principles of judicial conduct, and they

demand immediate, decisive action.
III. Specific Violations of SCRCP Rule 501 by Judge Danny Singleton
1. Defamation and Unlawful Banning from Court:

e Violation: Judge Singleton issued an email accusing me of illegally offering legal advice
and banned me from the probate court without due process, in blatant violation of Canon

2A and Canon 3B(2).

e Details: The defamatory email was sent to uninterested parties, based on hearsay, and
was entirely devoid of direct observation. This unlawful banishment violated my due
process rights and exemplifies Judge Singleton’s abuse of judicial power. Canon 2A
emphasizes that a judge must act in a manner that promotes public confidence in the
integrity and impartiality of the judiciary. Judge Singleton’s actions here were anything
but impartial or confidence-inspiring. Canon 3B(2) requires that a judge uphold the
law—by issuing this ban without due process, Judge Singleton flouted the very legal

standards he is sworn to uphold.
2. Retaliation for Exercising Free Speech:

e Violation: Judge Singleton retaliated against me for exercising my First Amendment
rights by unlawfully incarcerating me for contempt without trial, violating Canon 2A and

Canon 3B(5).

e Details: My incarceration for recording a video in a public lobby—an act protected by
the First Amendment—was motivated purely by Judge Singleton’s personal animosity,
with no legal justification. Canon 2A demands impartiality, yet Judge Singleton’s actions
were driven by personal vendetta rather than the law. Canon 3B(5) requires that a judge
perform judicial duties without bias or prejudice. Judge Singleton’s retaliatory actions

demonstrate a complete disregard for this essential ethical requirement.
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3. Improper Jurisdiction and Criminal Prosecution:

e Violation: Judge Singleton exceeded his jurisdiction by prosecuting me for direct
criminal contempt, a matter far outside the scope of probate court authority, violating

Canon 2A and Canon 3B(2).

o Details: The probate court is a court of limited jurisdiction, with no authority over
criminal matters. Judge Singleton’s decision to preside over a criminal contempt
proceeding was a gross overstep and a clear violation of the law. Canon 2A mandates
that a judge must respect and comply with the law to maintain public confidence in the
judiciary. By usurping authority that he did not possess, Judge Singleton shattered any
semblance of legal propriety. Canon 3B(2) reinforces that a judge must be faithful to the
law and not act beyond their legal authority. Judge Singleton’s conduct here shows a

blatant disregard for these core principles.
4. Failure to Provide Notice of Administrative Order:

e Violation: Judge Singleton violated Canon 2A and Canon 3B(7) by failing to ensure
that the Administrative Order regarding electronic devices was posted as required,

depriving me of proper notice.

o Details: Without this notice, I could not have known about the restrictions imposed by
the order. Judge Singleton’s failure to post the order on the courthouse doors, as
mandated, rendered any enforcement against me unlawful and stripped me of any
opportunity to comply, thereby making the resulting incarceration a grave injustice.
Canon 2A emphasizes the importance of judicial integrity and public confidence—both
of which are eroded when orders are not properly served or posted. Canon 3B(7) requires
that a judge provide necessary notice and adhere to procedural requirements to ensure
fairness. Judge Singleton’s disregard for these mandates resulted in a fundamental

violation of my rights.
5. Abuse of Judicial Power:

e Violation: Judge Singleton abused his power by demanding I destroy video evidence and

by incarcerating me without a proper legal basis, violating Canon 3B(2) and Canon 2A.
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o Details: On May 29, 2024, Judge Singleton’s order to delete video evidence was not only
unethical but also illegal, constituting an obstruction of justice and evidence tampering.
Canon 3B(2) obliges a judge to follow the law, which Judge Singleton blatantly ignored
by attempting to destroy evidence and incarcerate me without legal grounds. Canon 2A
emphasizes the necessity of maintaining public confidence in the judiciary—confidence
that is obliterated when a judge misuses his power to manipulate evidence and violate due

process.
6. Denial of Right to Counsel and Due Process:

e Violation: Judge Singleton denied me the right to legal representation by refusing to
grant a continuance, forcing me to proceed without counsel, in violation of Canon 3B(4)

and Canon 3B(2).

e Details: Despite having an approved application for a public defender, Judge Singleton
denied a continuance, forcing me to represent myself in a criminal contempt
proceeding—a clear violation of my Sixth Amendment rights. Canon 3B(4) requires that
a judge afford every person who has a legal interest in a proceeding the right to be heard
according to law. By denying me this right, Judge Singleton compromised the fairness of
the entire process. Canon 3B(2) once again demands adherence to the law, which Judge

Singleton ignored by denying my basic constitutional rights.
7. Issuance of Orders Without Case Numbers:

e Violation: Judge Singleton issued multiple orders, including sentencing orders, without

case numbers, violating Canon 3B(1) and Canon 3C(1).

e Details: These orders, lacking the most basic legal formalities, effectively made me an
undocumented prisoner, without any legitimate legal basis for my detention. The
complete absence of case numbers on these orders not only violated procedural rules but
also rendered these orders legally void, further compounding the miscarriage of justice.
Canon 3B(1) obliges judges to diligently discharge their administrative responsibilities
and maintain order in proceedings. By failing to include case numbers, Judge Singleton

demonstrated gross negligence and disregard for the integrity of judicial records. Canon
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3C(1) requires that a judge maintain professional competence in judicial administration—

Judge Singleton’s failure here is a stark violation of this requirement.
8. Improper Role as Prosecutor and Judge:

e Violation: Judge Singleton acted as both prosecutor and judge in the contempt

proceedings, violating Canon 3E(1) and Canon 2A.

o Details: By serving as the moving party, prosecutor, witness, victim and judge, Judge
Singleton obliterated any semblance of impartiality, turning the proceedings into a farce
of justice. Canon 3E(1) mandates disqualification in any proceeding where a judge’s
impartiality might reasonably be questioned. Judge Singleton’s refusal to recuse himself,
despite his multiple conflicting roles, demonstrates a clear violation of this Canon.
Canon 2A further supports the principle that justice must not only be done but must be
seen to be done—Judge Singleton’s actions made a mockery of this essential judicial

standard.
9. Ex Parte Communications and Witness Coaching:

e Violation: Judge Singleton engaged in ex parte communications and coached his

subordinates, violating Canon 3B(7) and Canon 2A.

o Details: These actions destroyed any chance of a fair trial, as Judge Singleton’s biases were
clearly reflected in his interactions with witnesses and his overall handling of the case.
Canon 3B(7) explicitly prohibits a judge from engaging in ex parte communications
concerning a pending or impending proceeding. Judge Singleton’s disregard for this rule
compromised the integrity of the trial. Canon 2A emphasizes that judges must act at all times
in a manner that promotes public confidence in the judiciary. By engaging in ex parte
communications and coaching witnesses, Judge Singleton shattered this confidence and

violated fundamental judicial ethics.
10. Judicial Vindictiveness and Bias:

e Violation: Judge Singleton displayed judicial vindictiveness, imposing harsh sentences
and making biased statements in retaliation for my public criticism, violating Canon

3E(1) and Canon 2A.
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Details: Judge Singleton’s actions were driven by personal animosity, not legal
reasoning. His refusal to recuse himself despite this bias was a gross violation of my right
to an impartial hearing. Canon 3E(1) demands that a judge disqualify himself in any
proceeding where his impartiality might reasonably be questioned. Judge Singleton’s
actions, motivated by personal vendetta, violated this Canon and destroyed any
semblance of fairness in the proceedings. Canon 2A reinforces the need for judges to act
without bias or prejudice—Judge Singleton’s vindictiveness in this case is a flagrant

breach of this fundamental principle.

IV. Prayer for Relief

WHEREFORE, I respectfully demand that this Court:

1.

Impose Immediate Sanctions: Against Judge Danny Singleton for his flagrant violations
of SCRCP Rule 501, including disqualification from any further involvement in this or

any related cases.

Vacate All Related Orders: Issued by Judge Singleton in this matter, due to his clear

bias, improper conduct, and lack of jurisdiction.

. Initiate a Judicial Inquiry: To investigate the full extent of Judge Singleton’s

misconduct and determine appropriate disciplinary action, including possible removal

from the bench.

Provide Any Other Relief: That this Court deems just and proper to uphold the integrity
of the judiciary and protect the rights of individuals subjected to such blatant judicial

abuse.

Respectfully Submitted, this August 27, 2024.

DR. JASON MICHAEL BOYLE, Ph.D., Appellant
750 Mourning Dove Ln. Seneca, South Carolina 29678
jasonboyle03@gmail.com

(864) 245-3278
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THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE OCONEE COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
APPEAL FROM THE PROBATE COURT
TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
The Order of Judge Danny Singleton

CASE NO: 2024-CP-3700451

JASON MICHAEL BOYLE------ Appellant,

DANNY SINGLETON, “et al” ------- --Respondents

PROOF OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this August 27, 2024, a copy of the Motion for Sanctions was

delivered to the following parties:

1. Jim Logan: logan @loganandjolly.com

1805 N Boulevard, Anderson, SC. 29621

2. Oconee County Detention Center: jchapman @oconeelaw.com

300 S Church St, Walhalla, SC 29691

3. Oconee County Sheriff’s Department: mcrenshaw @oconeelaw.com

300 S Church St, Walhalla, SC 29691

4. Oconee County Supervisor: district2@oconeesc.com

415 S. Pine St. Walhalla, SC 29691

Respectfully Submitted, this August 19, 2024.

DR. JASON MICHAEL BOYLE, Ph.D., Appellant.
750 Mourning Dove Ln. Seneca, South Carolina 29678

jasonbovle03@gmail.com
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
ISSUED BY THE CIVIL COURT IN THE COUNTY OF OCONEE

Jason Michael Boyle, Plaintiff

V. SUBPOENA IN A CIVIL CASE
Danny Singleton, et al, Defendants Case Number: 2024-CP-37-00451

Pending in Oconee County

TO: Cpt. Jeremy Chapman, Oconee County Detention Center (Via Electronic Mail)
[] YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear in the above named court at the place, and time specified below to testify in the
above case.

PLACE OF TESTIMONY COURTROOM

DATE AND TIME , AM

[] YOU ARE COMMANDED to appear at the place, date, and time specified below to testify at the taking of a
deposition in the above case.

PLACE OF DEPOSITION DATE AND TIME " AM

m YOU ARE COMMANDED to produce and permit inspection and copying of the following documents or objects in
your possession, custody or control at the place, date and time specified below (list documents of objects:

Phone records of Detainee Jason Boyle made while in the custody of the Oconee County Detention Center dated
June 19, 2024 from 10:00am — 5:00pm

PLACE DATE AND TIME September 17, 2024 10:00 AM
Logan & Jolly, LLP

[ ] YOU ARE COMMANDED to permit inspection of the following premises at the date and time specified below.

PREMISES DATE AND TIME 5 AM

ANY SUBPOENAED ORGANIZATION NOT A PARTY TO THIS IS HEREBY DIRECTED TO RULE 30(b)(6), SOUTH CAROLINA RULES OF
CIVIL PROCEDURE, TO FILE A DESIGNATION WITH THE COURT SPECIFYING ONE OR MORE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, OR MANAGING
AGENTS, OR OTHER PERSONS WHO CONSENT TO TESTIFY ON ITS BEHALF, SHALL § 'I’FORTH FOR EACH PERSON DESIGNATED, THE
MATTERS ON WHICH HE WILL TESTIFY OR PRODUCE DOCUMENTS OR THIN THE PERSON SO DESIGNATED TESTIFY AS TO
MATTERS KNOWN OR REASONABLY AVAILABLE TO THE ORGANIZATION

[ CERTIFY THAT THE §

SUB ._g S ISSUE }@Q’V ITH RU E’45(c)(1), AND THAT NOTICE AS REQUIRED BY RULE 45(b)(1) HAS BEEN
= Sep mber3 2024 \}m& A L—O ‘i CU(. dl"

Atmmeyf[ssumg Officer’s Sl ature Print Name
ndicate if Attorney for Plaint#f or Defendant
Attormey> dress-a elephone Number :

Clerk of Court/Issuing Officer’s Signature Date Print Name
Pro Se Litigant’s Name, Address and Telephone Number :
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PROOF OF SERVICE

SERVED DATE September 3, 2024 FEES AND MILEAGE TO BE TENDERED TO WITNESS UPON
DAILY ARRIVAL

COves [NO  AMOUNT §

PLACE Via Electronic Mail

SERVED ON Oconee County Detention Center c/o Cpt. Jeremy Chapman MANNER OF SERVICE Electronic Mail

SERVED BY Kim Manley TITLE Paralegal

DECLARATION OF SERVER

| certify that the foregoing information contained in the Proof of Serviciis true and COVWM
Executed on_September 3, 2024 ;
SIGNATURE OF SERVER d"\
1805 N. Boulevard, Anderson, SC 29621

ADDRESS OF SERVER

Rule 45, South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedures, Parts (c) and (d):
(c) Protection of Persons Subject to Subpoenas.

(1) A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall take reasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or
expense on a person subject to that subpoena. The court an behalf of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty and impose upon the party
or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a reasonable attorney's fee.

(2)(A) A person commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated electronically stored information, books, papers, documents or
tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person at the place of production or inspection unless commanded to appear for
deposition, hearing or trial. A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena for production of books, papers and
documents without a deposition shall provide to another party copies of documents so produced upon written request. The party requesting copies shall
pay the reasonable costs of reproduction.

(B) Subject to paragraph (d)(2) of this rule, a persan commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the
subpoena or before the time specified for compliance if such time is less than 14 days after service, serve upon the party or attorney designated in the
subpoena written objection to inspection or copying of any or all of the designated materials or of the premises—or to producing electronically stored
information in the form or forms requested. If objection is made, the party serving the subpoena shall not be entitled to inspect and copy the materials or
inspect the premises except pursuant to an order of the court by which the subpoena was issued. If abjection has been made, the party serving the
subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to produce, move at any time in the court that issued the subpoena for an order to compel the
production. Such an order to compel production shall protect any person who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expense resulting from
the inspection and copying commanded.

(3)(A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued, or regarding a subpoena commanding appearance at a deposition, or production or
inspection directed to a non-party, the court in the county where the non-party resides, is employed or regularly transacts business in person, shall
quash or madify the subpoena if it:

(1) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance; or

(ii) requires a person who is not a party nor an officer, director or managing agent of a party, nor a general partner of a partnership that is a party, to
travel more than 50 miles from the county where that person resides, is employed or regularly transacts business in person, except that, subject to the
provisions of clause (c)(3)(B)(iii) of this rule, such a person may in order to attend trial be commanded to travel from any such place within the state in
which the trial is held; or

(iii) requires disclosure of privileged or otherwise protected matter and no exception or waiver applies; or

(iv) subjects a person to undue burden.

(B) If a subpoena:

(i) requires disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential research, development, or commercial information, or

(ii) requires disclosure of an unretained expert's opinion or information not describing specific events or occurrences in dispute and resulting from the
expert's study made not at the request of any party, or
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{iii) requires a person who is not a party nor an officer, director or managing agent of a party, nor a general partner of a partnership that s a party, to
incur substantial expense to travel from the county where that person resides, is employed or regularly transacts business In person, the court may, to
protect a person subject to or affectad by the subpoana, quash or modify the subpoena or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena 1s issusd shows a
substantial need for the testimony or material that cannot be otherwise met without undue hardship and assures that the person to whom the subpoena
is addressed will be reasonably compensated, the court may order appearance or production only upon specified conditions.

{d} Duties in Responding to Subpoena.

{1){A)A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as they are kept in the usual course of business or shall organize
and label them to correspond with the categories in the demand.

(B) If a subpoena does not specify the form or forms for producing electronically stored Information, a person respanding to a subpoena must produce
the information in a form or forms In which it is ordinarily maintained or In a reasonably usable form or forms.

(C) A person rasponding to a subpoena need not produce the same slectronlcally stored information in more than one form.

(D) A person respending to a subpoena need not provide discovery of electronlcally stored Informatlon from sources that the person identifies as not
reasenably accessible bacause of undue burden or cost. On motion to compel discovery or to quash, the person from whom discovery is sought must
show that the information scught is not reasonab!y accessible because of undue burden or cost. If that showing Is made, the court may nonetheless
order discovery from such sources If the requesting party shows good cause, consldering the timitations of Rule 26{b)(6)(B). The court may specify
conditions for the discovery,

(2)(A) When Information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is privileged or subject to protaction as frial preparation materials, the claim
shall be made expressly and shall be supported by a description of the nature of the documents, communications, or things not produced that is
sufficlent to enable the demanding party to contest the claim.

{B} If information produced In respense to a subpoena is subject to a claim of privilege or of protection as frial preparation material, the person making
the claim may notify any party that recelved the information of the claim and the basis for it. After being notifled, a party must promptly return, sequester,
or destroy the specified information and any copies it has and may not use or disclose the informaticn until the clalm Is resclved. A regeiving party may
promptly present the information to the court under seal for a determination of the clalm. If the receiving party disclosed the information before being
notified, the receiving party must fake reasonable staps to retrieve the information. The persen who produced the information must preserve the
information until the claim is resolved.

SCCA 254 (05/2015) (See Rule 45, South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure, Patts (¢} & (d) on pages 2 and 3)
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THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE OCONEE COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
APPEAL FROM THE PROBATE COURT
TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
The Order of Judge Danny Singleton
CASE NO: 2024-CP-3700451

JASON MICHAEL BOYLE------ Appellant,

DANNY SINGLETON, “et al” ------- --Respondents

AMENDED MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENA ISSUED TO CAPT. JEREMY

CHAPMAN OF OCONEE COUNTY DETENTION AND MOTION FOR SANCTIONS

COMES NOW the Appellant, Jason Boyle, pro se, and respectfully moves this Honorable Court
to quash the subpoena executed on September 3, 2024, by Jim Logan, attorney for Judge Danny
Singleton, to Capt. Jeremy Chapman of Oconee County Detention, and to impose sanctions on
Mr. Logan and his client, Judge Danny Singleton, for attempting to conduct improper discovery
and for attempting to submit new evidence on appeal. In support of this motion, the Appellant

states as follows:

1.

Procedural Background: The Appellant was sentenced to incarceration by Judge Danny
Singleton of the Oconee County Probate Court on June 17, 2024. The Appellant
subsequently filed an appeal challenging this sentence. (See Exhibits A and B. Exhibit
A — Sentencing order of June 17. Exhibit B — Amended Notice of Appeal, June 25)

Subpoena Executed After Trial: On September 3, 2024, Jim Logan, the attorney for
Judge Danny Singleton, executed a subpoena seeking to obtain recordings of the
Appellant’s phone calls made during incarceration on June 19, 2024. (See Exhibit C —
Subpoena, September 3) This subpoena was issued after the date of the trial and
sentencing, which occurred on June 17, 2024. This is not evidence that can be submitted
into the record. Additionally, this recording is from a date prior to the issuance of the
release order of July 17, and therefore cannot be sused as evidence of violation of a court
order. (See Exhibit D — Release Order of July 17). This evidence is irrelevant to all
aspects of this case.

Improper Introduction of New Evidence: According to South Carolina Code Section
62-1-308(i), an appeal from the probate court to the circuit court is limited to the
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evidence that was presented in the probate court. The introduction of evidence obtained
after the trial, such as the recordings of phone calls made during incarceration on June 19,
2024, is improper and inadmissible in this appeal.

4. Improper Discovery Attempt: The issuance of the subpoena by Attorney Logan
represents an improper attempt to conduct discovery during the appellate process.
Discovery is not permitted at this stage, and such action violates the Appellant’s rights.
Attorney Logan’s actions are a clear attempt to circumvent the rules of appellate
procedure and should not be tolerated by this Court.

5. Violation of Due Process: Allowing this subpoena to stand would violate the Appellant’s
due process rights by introducing evidence after the trial, which the Appellant had no
opportunity to address or contest during the original proceedings.

6. Motion for Sanctions: Given the improper nature of the subpoena and the clear violation
of the Appellant’s rights, the Appellant respectfully requests that this Court impose
sanctions on Attorney Logan for his conduct. The Appellant requests that this Court
consider Attorney Logan’s actions as an abuse of the legal process and a deliberate
attempt to violate the Appellant’s rights by conducting unauthorized discovery.

WHEREFORE, the Appellant respectfully requests that this Court grant the following
relief:

1. Quash the subpoena executed on September 3, 2024, by Jim Logan, attorney for Judge
Danny Singleton, seeking recordings of the Appellant’s phone calls made while
incarcerated.

2. Order Jeremy Chapman, or any other custodian of the requested records, not to release
any recordings or records of the Appellant’s phone calls as requested by the subpoena.

3. Prohibit the introduction of any evidence obtained through this subpoena in the ongoing
appellate process.

4. Impose appropriate sanctions on Attorney Jim Logan and Judge Danny Singleton for
attempting to conduct unauthorized discovery in violation of the Appellant’s rights.

5. Grant any other relief this Court deems just and proper.
Appendix of Exhibits
Exhibit A

o Title: Sentencing Order of June 17, 2024

o Description: The official sentencing order issued by Judge Danny Singleton of the
Oconee County Probate Court, sentencing Jason Boyle to incarceration on June 17, 2024.
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Exhibit B
o Title: Amended Notice of Appeal, June 25, 2024

e Description: The amended notice of appeal filed by Jason Boyle on June 25, 2024,
challenging the sentence imposed by Judge Danny Singleton.

Exhibit C
o Title: Subpoena Issued on September 3, 2024

e Description: The subpoena executed by Attorney Jim Logan on September 3, 2024,
directed to Capt. Jeremy Chapman of the Oconee County Detention Center, seeking
recordings of Jason Boyle's phone calls made on June 19, 2024.

Exhibit D
o Title: Release Order of July 17, 2024

e Description: The release order issued on July 17, 2024, pertaining to Jason Boyle's
incarceration status.

Respectfully Submitted, this November 13, 2024.

DR. JASON MICHAEL BOYLE, Ph.D., Appellant
750 Mourning Dove Ln. Seneca, South Carolina 29678
jasonboyle03@gmail.com

(864) 245-3278
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THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE OCONEE COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
APPEAL FROM THE PROBATE COURT
TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

The Order of Judge Danny Singleton
CASE NO: 2024-CP-3700451

JASON MICHAEL BOYLE------ Appellant,

DANNY SINGLETON, “et al” ------- --Respondents

PROOF OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this November 13, 2024, a copy of the Motion to quash and
sanctions was delivered to the following parties:

1. Jim Logan: logan@loganandjolly.com
1805 N Boulevard, Anderson, SC. 29621

2. Oconee County Detention Center: jchapman@oconeelaw.com
300 S Church St, Walhalla, SC 29691

3. Oconee County Sheriff’s Department: mcrenshaw @oconeelaw.com
300 S Church St, Walhalla, SC 29691

4. Oconee County Supervisor: district2@oconeesc.com
415 S. Pine St. Walhalla, SC 29691

Respectfully Submitted, this November 13, 2024.

DR. JASON MICHAEL BOYLE, Ph.D., Appellant.
750 Mourning Dove Ln. Seneca, South Carolina 29678
jasonboyle03@gmail.com
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THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE OCONEE COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
APPEAL FROM THE PROBATE COURT

TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

The Order of Judge Danny Singleton
CASE NO: 2024-CP-3700451

JASON MICHAEL BOYLE------ Appellant,

DANNY SINGLETON, “et al” ------- --Respondents

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. On or about October 24, 2023, the Appellant visited the Oconee Probate Office to deliver
a copy of the Notice of Appeal filed in the Circuit Court. This Notice of Appeal was
submitted on behalf of the Appellant's fiancée, Dorothy Pierce, in connection with the
ongoing estate case of Doyle Elton Pierce and specifically addressed the highly contested
Settlement Order signed by Judge Singleton.
a. While waiting on the court, the Appellant overheard a conversation between
Judge Green, the probate assistant Judge, and an older gentleman in the Lobby. Judge
Green informed him of his right to get an attorney, and the Appellant interjected to
inform him he had the right to act Pro Se.
b. Subsequently, Judge Singleton, who was not present for the interaction in the

lobby, sent an email to the parties of the Pierce Estate case. The Appellant was not
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included in the email for the Appellant is not a party to this estate. The email directed

to Mrs. Pierce stated:

c.
lobby.

i

Page 2 of 41

i

ii.

iii.

Judge Singleton writes, “Again, the appeal issue was part of the agreement. If
it is your intent to appeal, you have every right to do so, however, it violates
the agreement and it was stated in court that the appeals were to be removed”
.... He added that... “A hearing will be scheduled soon to determine the status
of the personal representative.”

Regarding the Appellant’s conversation with the gentleman, Judge Singleton
writes, “It also appears that you fiancé may have picked up the wrong
documents. Further, your fiancé will no longer be allowed in the probate
office or lobby area. He was here with your/his child waiting on documents
and he took it upon himself to interrupt a judge in the lobby while she was
speaking with someone on a separate estate issue. He was offering that person
legal advice on what and what not to do and even encouraged him not to
listen and come outside and speak to you, that you knew all about probate and
you could help him. This is illegal and giving legal advise and acting as a
non-licensed attorney. For this reason, he will no longer be able to enter the
probate”

The Appellant asserts that the email sent to parties involved in the Estate of

Doyle Elton Pierce was inappropriate, inaccurate, and defamatory.

The Appellant was never formally issued an order banning him from the probate

ii.

Shortly after the inappropriate and defamatory email was circulated, the
Appellant returned to the lobby to file papers. Although he had heard about
the email, he had not yet seen it. During this visit, Judge Singleton confronted
the Appellant, stating that he was not allowed to be there and could not return.
The Appellant explained his understanding of the law to Judge Singleton,
asserting that he was within his rights to be there, and proceeded to file the
papers.

Subsequently, the judge permitted the Appellant to file the documents he had

come to submit. The Appellant continued to return to the probate office on
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numerous occasions to file papers on behalf of Mrs. Pierce without incident,
until May 24, 2024.

2. On May 24, 2024, the Appellant entered the probate lobby and recorded himself paying an
invoice on behalf of Mrs. Pierce. The facts surrounding the debt, and the payment, are
relevant to separate litigation.

a. There were no signs on the probate court doors restricting access and the doors
were not locked. The probate lobby is in a public building and open to the public.

b. The Appellant did not go into restricted space.

c. At this time, the Appellant had no information about any South Carolina Supreme
Court order restricting the use of electronic devices in South Carolina courthouses.

d. There were no notices posted on the Probate Court door restricting the use of
electronic devices.

e. The appellant paid the invoice while recording his interactions with the Probate

Court Clerk

3. During his interactions with the Probate Court Clerk, the Appellant recorded a statement in
which he expressed his frustration, saying: “If he hadn’t threatened to kick me out of here
illegally, I wouldn’t be so annoyed with him as a whole. But when he broke the law so
blatantly in my face and then denied it later because he was so ignorant of the law—I mean,
he’s got a high school degree. He doesn’t even have a college degree, and he’s a Probate
Judge in Oconee County? I mean, that’s wild. Whoever thought that was a good idea? He’s
not intelligent enough to understand complex arguments, but he’s managing complex probate

cases.”

4. Immediately after recording the interaction, the Appellant posted the video to YouTube while

sitting in his car outside the courthouse.

5. The contents of the video recording and its subsequent posting on YouTube enraged Judge
Singleton. This incident became the catalyst for the judge’s retaliatory and vindictive actions
against the Appellant, eventually resulting in the Appellant’s incarceration on two separate
occasions for the same offense. It is important to note that Judge Singleton was not upset

about the use of an electronic device itself, as he has previously allowed his family members
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to use electronic devices in his chambers to take pictures, which were later posted to

Facebook, where he was tagged, all without repercussions.

6. When the Appellant returned home, Mrs. Pierce informed him that she had received an email
from Judge Singleton stating that the Appellant's recording was illegal. The Appellant then
requested the Judge's email address and sent him a message asserting that he believed his
actions were protected by the First Amendment, and that any order to the contrary would be a
violation of his constitutional rights. The Appellant also included a link to the video he had

previously posted on YouTube.

7. On May 28, 2024, Officer Honea from the Oconee County Sheriff’s Department (OCSD)
arrived at the Appellant’s residence to serve separate Rules To Show Cause (RTSC) to both
the Appellant and Mrs. Pierce. Since the Appellant and his fiancée keep the gate to their
residence locked, the officer drove through the woods to bypass the locked driveway gate,
which prominently displayed a "No Trespassing" sign, following orders from Judge
Singleton. Mrs. Pierce accepted her RTSC but refused to accept service on behalf of the
Appellant.

8. On May 29, 2024, the Appellant returned to the probate court to obtain his Rule to Show
Cause and requested to speak with Judge Singleton. Before meeting with the Appellant,
Judge Singleton had already contacted the Oconee County Sheriff’s Office to request the
presence of deputies. Shortly thereafter, Officer Stokes and three other OCSD officers
arrived. Judge Singleton then emerged from his chambers to speak with the Appellant. The
Appellant recorded his interactions with the Judge in the probate court lobby, far from the

Clerk’s window, as he requested the summons for the RTSC.

a. Neither the probate court nor the OCSD were able to produce the RTSC document for

the Appellant.
b. The Appellant agreed to leave despite his legal right to remain.

c. As the Appellant was walking out of the court lobby and halfway down the hall
toward the exit, a probate court clerk followed him and informed him that Judge
Singleton had instructed the Appellant to return to the probate lobby to speak with

him.

Page 4 of 41

239





d. In the lobby, Judge Singleton demanded that the Appellant delete his video evidence
or be held in contempt of court. The Appellant declined to destroy his video evidence,
leading Judge Singleton to order the OCSD to arrest him and hold him in jail for 10
days for contempt of court. It is important to note that on this day, the Appellant did
not violate the alleged Supreme Court order regarding the use of electronic devices,
as he did not record at the Clerk’s window. Instead, he recorded his interactions with

Judge Singleton in the lobby.

e. Judge Singleton's actions reveal several significant issues, including his preemptive
involvement of law enforcement, which created an intimidating environment and

demonstrated his intent to incarcerate the Appellant before establishing any guilt.

f. The Appellant's incarceration stemmed solely from his refusal to delete video

evidence, not from any actual violation.

g. At no point during this interaction was I read my Miranda rights. I was not informed
of my right to remain silent, my right to an attorney, or that anything I said could be
used against me. This failure occurred despite the fact that I was clearly in a custodial
setting and being interrogated about my actions related to the video recording. I was
detained when Judge Singleton demanded my return to the court lobby. The
interaction between Judge Singleton and me meets the criteria for custodial
interrogation. I was not free to leave, as evidenced by my immediate arrest and
detention following my refusal to delete the video. The judge’s demand and
subsequent sentencing constituted an interrogation aimed at compelling an

incriminating response from me.

h. The Appellant was entitled to a hearing or trial before being sentenced to 10 days in
jail for refusing to delete his video evidence. However, instead of affording the
Appellant this due process, Judge Singleton immediately ordered him to serve 10
days in jail and only then scheduled a hearing for June 5, 2024, after the sentence had
already been imposed. This sequence of events highlights a significant violation of
the Appellant's rights, as he was punished without the opportunity to defend himself

or challenge the charges in a proper legal proceeding.
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l.

Furthermore, by attempting to have the Appellant delete video evidence, the judge
was violating the law by tampering with evidence. When the Appellant rightfully
declined this illegal request, the judge, instead of upholding the law, sentenced him to
jail. This action not only violated the Appellant’s rights but also demonstrated a
misuse of judicial authority by punishing the Appellant for refusing to comply with

an unlawful demand.

Later that day, on May 29, while incarcerated, the OCSD brought him a summons for
RTSC scheduled for June 5®.

The RTSC used the case number for the Doyle Pierce Estate case. It should be noted
that appellant’s case had nothing to do with the estate of Doyle Pierce and this is
confirmed by Judge singleton during the June 17, 2024.

The RTSC did not contain any times or dates of the purported violations.

m. In the Rule to show cause, Judge singleton was the Moving Party.

9. Subsequently, a sentencing order was further issued May 29, 2024, after appellant was

already in jail.

a.
b.

& o

.

This order did not contain a case number.

The order used vague language to describe the activities that occurred.

The order referred to both the events of May 24, 2024, and May 29, 2024.

The order inaccurately claimed that the Appellant was aware of the South Carolina
Supreme Court Administrative Order making rules on the use of electronic devices in
the public and restricted space of the courthouse.

The order charged appellant with Direct Criminal contempt.

10. On June 5, 2024, after more than a 7-day water-only hunger strike, the Appellant was brought

in an orange jumpsuit and shackles to the probate court for a criminal trial. The Appellant

was represented by a man he knew as a lawyer. His fiancé had retained him at the last

minute.

a.

b.

This hearing was video recorded by the probate court.
In this hearing, Judge Singleton was the moving party, victim, prosecutor, main

witness and the judge.
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11.

12.

13.

¢. Richard Hunt McDuff, an attorney on the Doyle Pierce Estate case, sat at the
prosecutor’s bench taking notes and making gestures.

d. Judge Singleton testified from the bench as to the facts of the case.

e. Witnesses included Judge Green and two Oconee probate clerks. All of the witnesses
called by Judge Singleton were his subordinates.

f. Judge Singleton testified from the bench defending himself against public allegations
the Appellant made about his character and competency.

g. Judge Singleton held the Appellant in direct contempt of court and sentenced him to
60 days.

i. This order did not contain a case number.

ii. The order failed to specify the date of the alleged criminal infraction or
provide any details regarding the actions deemed criminal or in violation of
the South Carolina Supreme Court Administrative Order (SCSC AO).

iii. Judge Singleton later declared a mistrial in this matter.

On June 6, 2024, Judge Singleton issued an order stating the Appellant was represented by
ineffective counsel in the RTSC hearing.

a. This order had no case number.

b. This order immediately released the Appellant from detention.
On June 6, prior to appellant’s release, the Appellant was issued a new RTSC for a trial date
of June 17, 2024. The wording in this RTSC is identical to the one issued on June 5, 2024.

a. The RTSC, again inappropriately used the Doyle Elton Pierce Estate Case number.

b. The RTSC had no date of incident.

¢.  The RTSC had no accusation of direct contempt.
A few days prior to June 12, 2024, the Appellant sent an email to the Probate Court Clerk
requesting audio files from his hearing for transcription purposes, as required by the South
Carolina Rules of Criminal and Civil Procedure, plus additional documents on his file to help
him prepare for June 17, 2024, hearing. On or about June 12, 2024, the Clerk of the Probate
Court informed the Appellant via email that his requested documents were ready. The
Appellant promptly visited the probate court, entered the probate lobby to retrieve the
requested records, make additional records requests, and speak with Judge Singleton about

the upcoming criminal trial as the prosecutor and the moving party.
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Once the Appellant retrieved the records request, the Appellant realized there were
many missing documents.
Once again, Judge Singleton called the Sheriff’s Office and requested deputies to
come to the probate court. It is important to note that it was the probate court clerk
who had informed the Appellant to come and pick up his records. Despite this, the
judge immediately called the police as soon as the Appellant arrived at the probate
court lobby.
While waiting for Judge Singleton to arrive, Officer Stokes and another officer
arrived to wait with him at the request of the probate court.
i. The Appellant was there with his one-year-old child and the child was playing
with Officer Stokes.
ii. The conversation and atmosphere were pleasant prior to the arrival of Judge
Singleton.
Judge Singleton arrived shortly in the lobby thereafter in an aggravated state.
Judge Singleton was too impatient to answer the Appellant’s questions and yet he is
the moving party in the appellant’s contempt case and the Prosecutor.
Judge Singleton asked the officers to remove me twice, they refused this request.

The Appellant stated that if threatened with arrest, the Appellant would leave.

. The Appellant left of his own volition without receiving all the requested documents

or making the additional records requests needed.

14. On June 10, 2024, Appellant applied for a public defender to defend him against the criminal

contempt charge levied against him by the judge who had already sentenced him to direct

criminal contempt on May 29, 2024, and June 5, 2024.

a. The public defender’s office determined that the Appellant met the financial
qualifications and that the case met the requirements for assignment of a public
defender.

b. Appellant’s application was approved after review, and appellant was advised to wait
for a public defender to be assigned to him.

c. The Public Defenders Office (PDO) advised the Appellant to hand over the approved
application form to the judge at the time of the hearing and request a continuance.

d. As of the morning of June 17, 2024, the Appellant had not heard back from the PDO.
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15. On June 17, 2024, at approximately 9:30 a.m., the Appellant filed a Motion to Dismiss, along
with a 14-page Memorandum of Law that presented strong legal arguments supported by
South Carolina state rules and case laws, as well as an approved application for a public
defender.

16. During the June 17, 2024, hearing, despite presenting the approved public defender form and
not waiving his right to an attorney, the Appellant’s request for a continuance pending the
appointment of a public defender was denied. The judge proceeded with the trial, forcing the
Appellant to represent himself without ensuring that he had adequate legal representation or

that he had knowingly and voluntarily waived his right to counsel.

a. During the first recess of the trial on June 17, 2024, Judge Singleton contacted the
Public Defender’s Office (PDO) regarding the Appellant's representation,
following the Appellant’s insistence on legal counsel and his submission of an
approved public defender form, which should have warranted a continuance until a

public defender was assigned.

b. Later in the trial, Mr. Abdalla, a public defender, and his paralegal arrived at the
probate court. They met with Judge Singleton in the judge’s chambers, ex parte,
and subsequently testified under oath that the Public Defender’s Office would not

represent the Appellant because the case was civil in nature, not criminal.

i.  The reasoning behind this was that the summons used the Doyle Pierce
Estate case number, a civil case in which the Appellant had no

involvement.

ii.  Asaresult, the Appellant was denied representation by the Public

Defender’s Office about an hour after the trial had already begun.

iii.  Judge Singleton denied the Appellant’s request for a continuance,
claiming that the Appellant had been informed of his right to a lawyer and
given sufficient time to secure one. However, this was inaccurate, as the
Appellant had indeed secured a public defender, but due to the probate

court’s wrongful annexation of the case to the Estate of Doyle Elton

Page 9 of 41

244





Pierce, the Appellant was denied representation by the Public Defender’s

Office after the trial had already commenced.

a. Appellant later learned that the public defender filed a document in the probate
court stating they were unable to represent appellant due to the civil nature of the
case. This was a reason to grant him a continuance to secure a lawyer, but instead
appellant was deprived of legal counsel.

b. The appellant could not afford a lawyer, and yet the county Public Defender's
office considers the case civil, even though appellant had already served a 10-day
jail sentence for direct criminal contempt. The second jail sentence, which was 60
days, was on probate court file but was relieved due to ineffective counsel. The
matter was in no way civil, and the judge knew he was treating the case as criminal
contempt.

¢. On June 17,2024, at the criminal trial, the motion to dismiss was denied verbally
from the bench without proper consideration or argument.

i.  The details of the motion were never discussed in open court as
appellant insisted on his right to counsel.

ii.  The motion was never officially dismissed/denied with the judge's
signature or properly recorded as required by law, rendering the order on
the Motion to Dismiss null and void, as if no order had been issued.

iii.  There was insufficient time between the filing of the document and the
start of the trial for Judge Singleton to carefully consider the arguments
of the motion, or even read the motion in its entirety for that matter.

iv.  The memorandum on the motion to dismiss requested the following:

= Ajury trial.
= Judge Singleton to recuse himself.

= A special prosecutor.

17. During the trial, witnesses testified that the Appellant was not informed of the Supreme
Court order during the first recording and that the Appellant did not use an electronic device

at the clerks' window during the second recording, thus not violating the order.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

After the trial, despite witness testimonies exonerating Appellant, Judge Singleton declared
the Appellant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of direct criminal contempt and resentenced

him to an additional 50 days of incarceration, following the initial 10-day sentence.
i.  Once again, this order contained no case number.

ii.  The order also lacked specific dates of the events in question or any details regarding

those events/ crimes.

In his oral conclusion and justification for the 50-day sentence, Judge Singleton indicated
that since the Appellant had already served 10 days of a previous 60-day sentence, he was
adding 50 days to complete the 60-day term. This action was inappropriate, as the original
sentence had already been fully served, making the additional 50 days a case of double

jeopardy.

The judge in this case acted as the moving party, the victim, the prosecutor, the primary
witness and the judge, creating a clear conflict of interest and undermining the fairness of the
proceedings. Throughout the trial, he continuously testified from the bench, and when the
Appellant requested that he be sworn in to be cross examined after testifying from the bench,

the judge blatantly refused.

The Probate Court issued several orders without creating a case number for the Appellant. As
a result, the Appellant was sent to the Oconee County Detention Center without a case
number, making it impossible to locate him in the South Carolina Department of Corrections
system. This effectively rendered the Appellant an undocumented prisoner, as his name could
be found in the Oconee County Department of Corrections, but a case number and the

reasons for his incarceration were not listed.
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LEGAL ARGUMENTS

Argument Regarding Issue 1

The Probate Judge erred when he accused the appellant, in an email to uninterested
parties, of illegally offering legal advice to a citizen in the lobby of the probate court on

October 24, 2023.

Judge Singleton, in an email to uninterested parties (Exhibit 1), falsely claimed that the appellant
had illegally offered legal advice to a citizen in the probate court lobby. Under South Carolina
law, defamatory statements made with reckless disregard for the truth form the basis for a
defamation claim, as seen in Holtzscheiter v. Thomson Newspapers, Inc., 332 S.C. 502, 506
S.E.2d 497 (Ct. App. 1998). The appellant contends that he merely informed a citizen of his
rights, which was corroborated by the testimony of Judge Green during a subsequent criminal
trial. The email from Judge Singleton, which was not based on direct observation, but rather on
hearsay and personal animosity, raises concerns of judicial misconduct. This is further supported
by Parker v. Evening Post Publishing Co., 317 S.C. 236, 452 S.E.2d 640 (Ct. App. 1994),
which underscores that accusations of criminal conduct, when made recklessly, constitute

defamation per se.

Furthermore, the appellant was inappropriately banned from the Probate Court in this same
email. This email order, without due process or proper service, is a violation of the Appellant’s
due process rights guaranteed by the 14th Amendment and underscores the reckless behavior of
Judge Singleton. Canon 2A of the South Carolina Code of Judicial Conduct requires judges
to act in a manner that promotes public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the
judiciary. Judge Singleton’s actions, motivated by personal feelings and retaliation for the filing

of an appeal, are a clear violation of Canon 3B(2).

Argument Regarding Issue 2

The probate court did not properly consider the appellant's right to free speech under the
First Amendment on October 24, 2023, May 24, 2024 and May 29, 2024 in its accusations

and orders.
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On October 24,2023, the appellant was wrongly accused by Judge Singleton of illegally offering
legal advice and was subsequently banned from the probate court in an email sent to the
appellant's fiancé and other disinterested parties This accusation was based on hearsay rather
than direct observation. The appellant's speech—informing a man of his rights—constitutes a
protected exercise of free speech under the First Amendment. The Supreme Court has
consistently held that speech on matters of public concern, such as legal rights, is at the core of
the First Amendment's protections. As stated in Snyder v. Phelps, "The First Amendment reflects
'a profound national commitment to the principle that debate on public issues should be
uninhibited, robust, and wide-open, and that it may well include vehement, caustic, and

m

sometimes unpleasantly sharp attacks on government and public officials." (Snyder v. Phelps,
562 U.S. 443,452 (2011)). By banning the appellant from the court without proper justification

or direct evidence, the probate court infringed upon the appellant's right to free speech.

On May 24,2024 the appellant filmed himself (Exhibit 2) paying a bill at the clerk’s window,
unaware of the South Carolina Supreme Court Administrative Order regarding the use of
electronic devices in courthouses (SCSC AO). The appellant was later sentenced to 10 and 50
days in jail for this action. While the use of electronic devices can be regulated within
courtrooms, the appellant's act of filming, particularly in a non-disruptive manner, should be
considered a form of speech. City of Houston v. Hill reinforces that laws or orders that broadly
restrict speech must be narrowly tailored and cannot infringe upon fundamental rights without
compelling justification. As the Court stated, "The First Amendment protects a significant
amount of verbal criticism and challenge directed at police officers. The Constitution does not
allow such speech to be made a crime." (City of Houston v. Hill, 482 U.S. 451, 461 (1987)). This
principle extends to non-disruptive acts of filming, underscoring the need for careful scrutiny to

avoid unconstitutional restrictions.

On May 29,2024, the appellant filmed in the lobby of the courthouse, an area not explicitly
prohibited by the alleged Supreme Court's order. The appellant was immediately arrested and
sentenced to 10 days in jail without a trial. (Exhibit 3) This action by the probate court is a clear
violation of the appellant's right to free speech and due process. The lobby of a courthouse is a
public space where expressive activities, including filming, are protected under the First

Amendment. The “right under the First and Fourteenth Amendments guaranteeing freedom of
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speech and of assembly, and freedom to petition the Government for a redress of grievances”

(Brown v. Louisiana, 383 U.S. 131 (1966)).

Argument Regarding Issue 3

The probate court erred in exceeding its jurisdiction by criminally prosecuting the
appellant for direct criminal contempt of a South Carolina Supreme Court Administrative

Order on use Electronic Devices in Courthouses (SCSC AO) dated March 09, 2023.

The Probate Court prosecuting the appellant for direct criminal contempt exceeded its
jurisdictional authority. The probate court in South Carolina is a court of limited jurisdiction, as
clearly established in Matter of Howard, 315 S.C. 356, 434 S.E.2d 254 (1993), and outlined in
Title 62-1-302 of the South Carolina Code. As stated in Matter of Howard, "The jurisdiction of
the probate court extends to subject matter related to estates of decedents. Because the estate
asserts no interest in the gun, the issue of title to the gun is not subject matter related to the estate
of the decedent. Accordingly, the probate court had no jurisdiction to determine that issue."
Given this limitation, the Probate Court’s attempt to prosecute the appellant for criminal
contempt, a matter unrelated to the administration of estates, appears to be beyond its authorized
scope. Additionally, there does not appear to be any history of criminal trials taking place in the
probate court in South Carolina, further supporting the argument that this action exceeded the

court’s jurisdiction. This will be a precedent setting case, if upheld.

The rationale for prosecuting the appellant stems from an alleged violation of a South Carolina
Supreme Court Administrative Order regarding the use of electronic devices in courthouses
(SCSC AO). Even if violation of this order could constitute criminal contempt, the probate court
lacked jurisdiction to hear the criminal contempt. Since the alleged offense is criminal, does not
arise from a pending probate matter nor affect the adjudication of any probate case, it falls

squarely outside the probate court’s limited jurisdiction.

Argument Regarding Issue 4

The appellant was not properly informed of the South Carolina Supreme Court
Administrative Order, through service or notice, or any related restrictions before his

actions on May 24 or May 29, 2024.
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